
MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH Transportation Advisory Board 
350 E Dahlia Ave., Palmer, Alaska 99645 

Meeting Packet - Table of Contents

Regular Meeting 

July 25th, 2025

Pg. = Item: 

• 1 = Agenda
• 3 = Draft April 25, 2025 Meeting Minutes
• 6 = Water body setback legislation

Physical Location of Meeting: Room 203 DSJ Bldg, 350 E. Dahlia Ave., Palmer 
Remote Participation: See attached agenda on p. 1

Planning and Land Use Department - Planning Division 

http://www.matsugov.us    planning@matsugov.us 

CHAIRPERSON 
Randy Durham 

VICE CHAIR 
Vacant

MSB STAFF 
Bianca Zibrat

BOARD MEMBERS 
Randy Durham – Chair 

Charles van Ravenswaay 
Kristina Whitman 

Jesse Peterson
Tim Alley 

http://www.matsugov.us/
mailto:planning@matsugov.us
https://matsugov.us/boards/fishcommission
https://matsugov.us/boards/fishcommission


____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Transportation Advisory Board Agenda July 25,  2025 Page 1 of 2 

MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH 

Transportation Advisory Board (TAB) 

AGENDA 

Edna DeVries, Mayor 

Randy Durham – Chair 

Charles Van Ravenswaay 

Kristina Whitman 

Jesse Peterson 

Tim Alley 

Bianca Zibrat – Staff Support 

Michael Brown, Borough Manager 

PLANNING & LAND USE DEPARTMENT 

Alex Strawn, Planning & Land Use Director 

Jason Ortiz, Deputy Director of Planning 

Fred Wagner, Platting Officer 

Location: 

MSB DSJ BLDG. 

Room 203 

350 E. Dahlia Ave. Palmer, AK 

July 25th, 2025

REGULAR MEETING 

10:00 a.m. 

I. CALL TO ORDER

II. ROLL CALL – DETERMINATION OF QUORUM

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Ways to participate in Transportation Advisory Board meetings: 

IN-PERSON:  You will have 3 minutes to state your oral comment. 

REMOTE PARTICIPATION VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS: 

Microsoft Teams Need help? 

Join the meeting now 

Meeting ID: 223 498 240 196 8 

Passcode: sD9dB2aL 

Dial in by phone 

+1 907-290-7880,,296457650# United States, Anchorage

(844) 643-2217,,296457650# United States (Toll-free)

Find a local number 

Phone conference ID: 296 457 650# 

For organizers: Meeting options | Reset dial-in PIN 

__________________________________________________ 

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 1 of 96

https://aka.ms/JoinTeamsMeeting?omkt=en-US
https://aka.ms/JoinTeamsMeeting?omkt=en-US
https://aka.ms/JoinTeamsMeeting?omkt=en-US
https://aka.ms/JoinTeamsMeeting?omkt=en-US
https://aka.ms/JoinTeamsMeeting?omkt=en-US
https://aka.ms/JoinTeamsMeeting?omkt=en-US
https://aka.ms/JoinTeamsMeeting?omkt=en-US
https://aka.ms/JoinTeamsMeeting?omkt=en-US
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_OWUzMWM4ODItMTUwMi00NTA4LThkZTktMDdmMDM1MjQ4OTRk%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22870c68b8-580c-4b1b-a27e-a44623e37916%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22310ec30c-e258-4ce3-a2b0-320106c3d0c0%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_OWUzMWM4ODItMTUwMi00NTA4LThkZTktMDdmMDM1MjQ4OTRk%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22870c68b8-580c-4b1b-a27e-a44623e37916%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22310ec30c-e258-4ce3-a2b0-320106c3d0c0%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_OWUzMWM4ODItMTUwMi00NTA4LThkZTktMDdmMDM1MjQ4OTRk%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22870c68b8-580c-4b1b-a27e-a44623e37916%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22310ec30c-e258-4ce3-a2b0-320106c3d0c0%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_OWUzMWM4ODItMTUwMi00NTA4LThkZTktMDdmMDM1MjQ4OTRk%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22870c68b8-580c-4b1b-a27e-a44623e37916%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22310ec30c-e258-4ce3-a2b0-320106c3d0c0%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_OWUzMWM4ODItMTUwMi00NTA4LThkZTktMDdmMDM1MjQ4OTRk%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22870c68b8-580c-4b1b-a27e-a44623e37916%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22310ec30c-e258-4ce3-a2b0-320106c3d0c0%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_OWUzMWM4ODItMTUwMi00NTA4LThkZTktMDdmMDM1MjQ4OTRk%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22870c68b8-580c-4b1b-a27e-a44623e37916%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22310ec30c-e258-4ce3-a2b0-320106c3d0c0%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_OWUzMWM4ODItMTUwMi00NTA4LThkZTktMDdmMDM1MjQ4OTRk%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22870c68b8-580c-4b1b-a27e-a44623e37916%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22310ec30c-e258-4ce3-a2b0-320106c3d0c0%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_OWUzMWM4ODItMTUwMi00NTA4LThkZTktMDdmMDM1MjQ4OTRk%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22870c68b8-580c-4b1b-a27e-a44623e37916%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22310ec30c-e258-4ce3-a2b0-320106c3d0c0%22%7d
tel:+19072907880,,296457650
tel:+19072907880,,296457650
tel:+19072907880,,296457650
tel:+19072907880,,296457650
tel:+19072907880,,296457650
tel:+19072907880,,296457650
tel:+19072907880,,296457650
tel:+19072907880,,296457650
tel:8446432217,,296457650
tel:8446432217,,296457650
tel:8446432217,,296457650
tel:8446432217,,296457650
tel:8446432217,,296457650
tel:8446432217,,296457650
tel:8446432217,,296457650
tel:8446432217,,296457650
https://dialin.teams.microsoft.com/c3e02646-7d3a-4bef-b6af-5b626f996308?id=296457650
https://dialin.teams.microsoft.com/c3e02646-7d3a-4bef-b6af-5b626f996308?id=296457650
https://dialin.teams.microsoft.com/c3e02646-7d3a-4bef-b6af-5b626f996308?id=296457650
https://dialin.teams.microsoft.com/c3e02646-7d3a-4bef-b6af-5b626f996308?id=296457650
https://dialin.teams.microsoft.com/c3e02646-7d3a-4bef-b6af-5b626f996308?id=296457650
https://dialin.teams.microsoft.com/c3e02646-7d3a-4bef-b6af-5b626f996308?id=296457650
https://dialin.teams.microsoft.com/c3e02646-7d3a-4bef-b6af-5b626f996308?id=296457650
https://dialin.teams.microsoft.com/c3e02646-7d3a-4bef-b6af-5b626f996308?id=296457650
https://teams.microsoft.com/meetingOptions/?organizerId=310ec30c-e258-4ce3-a2b0-320106c3d0c0&tenantId=870c68b8-580c-4b1b-a27e-a44623e37916&threadId=19_meeting_OWUzMWM4ODItMTUwMi00NTA4LThkZTktMDdmMDM1MjQ4OTRk@thread.v2&messageId=0&language=en-US
https://teams.microsoft.com/meetingOptions/?organizerId=310ec30c-e258-4ce3-a2b0-320106c3d0c0&tenantId=870c68b8-580c-4b1b-a27e-a44623e37916&threadId=19_meeting_OWUzMWM4ODItMTUwMi00NTA4LThkZTktMDdmMDM1MjQ4OTRk@thread.v2&messageId=0&language=en-US
https://teams.microsoft.com/meetingOptions/?organizerId=310ec30c-e258-4ce3-a2b0-320106c3d0c0&tenantId=870c68b8-580c-4b1b-a27e-a44623e37916&threadId=19_meeting_OWUzMWM4ODItMTUwMi00NTA4LThkZTktMDdmMDM1MjQ4OTRk@thread.v2&messageId=0&language=en-US
https://teams.microsoft.com/meetingOptions/?organizerId=310ec30c-e258-4ce3-a2b0-320106c3d0c0&tenantId=870c68b8-580c-4b1b-a27e-a44623e37916&threadId=19_meeting_OWUzMWM4ODItMTUwMi00NTA4LThkZTktMDdmMDM1MjQ4OTRk@thread.v2&messageId=0&language=en-US
https://teams.microsoft.com/meetingOptions/?organizerId=310ec30c-e258-4ce3-a2b0-320106c3d0c0&tenantId=870c68b8-580c-4b1b-a27e-a44623e37916&threadId=19_meeting_OWUzMWM4ODItMTUwMi00NTA4LThkZTktMDdmMDM1MjQ4OTRk@thread.v2&messageId=0&language=en-US
https://teams.microsoft.com/meetingOptions/?organizerId=310ec30c-e258-4ce3-a2b0-320106c3d0c0&tenantId=870c68b8-580c-4b1b-a27e-a44623e37916&threadId=19_meeting_OWUzMWM4ODItMTUwMi00NTA4LThkZTktMDdmMDM1MjQ4OTRk@thread.v2&messageId=0&language=en-US
https://teams.microsoft.com/meetingOptions/?organizerId=310ec30c-e258-4ce3-a2b0-320106c3d0c0&tenantId=870c68b8-580c-4b1b-a27e-a44623e37916&threadId=19_meeting_OWUzMWM4ODItMTUwMi00NTA4LThkZTktMDdmMDM1MjQ4OTRk@thread.v2&messageId=0&language=en-US
https://teams.microsoft.com/meetingOptions/?organizerId=310ec30c-e258-4ce3-a2b0-320106c3d0c0&tenantId=870c68b8-580c-4b1b-a27e-a44623e37916&threadId=19_meeting_OWUzMWM4ODItMTUwMi00NTA4LThkZTktMDdmMDM1MjQ4OTRk@thread.v2&messageId=0&language=en-US
https://dialin.teams.microsoft.com/usp/pstnconferencing
https://dialin.teams.microsoft.com/usp/pstnconferencing
https://dialin.teams.microsoft.com/usp/pstnconferencing
https://dialin.teams.microsoft.com/usp/pstnconferencing
https://dialin.teams.microsoft.com/usp/pstnconferencing
https://dialin.teams.microsoft.com/usp/pstnconferencing
https://dialin.teams.microsoft.com/usp/pstnconferencing
https://dialin.teams.microsoft.com/usp/pstnconferencing


____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Transportation Advisory Board Agenda July 25,  2025  Page 2 of 2 

IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

• Draft Minutes from 04/25/2025

VI. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION (three minutes per person for items not scheduled for

public hearing)

VII. STAFF/AGENCY REPORTS & PRESENTATIONS

• No reports or presentations

VIII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

• No unfinished business

IX. NEW BUSINESS

• Presentation of a resolution of support for the Waterbody Setback Ordinance

X. MEMBERS’ COMMENTS

XI. NEXT MEETING DATE

• October 24th

XII. ADJOURNMENT

PACKET ATTACHMENTS: 

• Resolution of support for the Waterbody Setback Ordinance

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 2 of 96



Transportation Advisory  Board Agenda February 25th 2025  Page 1 of 3 

MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH 

Transportation Advisory Board (TAB) 

MINUTES 

Edna DeVries, Mayor 

Randy Durham - Chair 

Pat Daniels 

Charles Van Ravenswaay 

Kristina Whitman 

Jesse Petterson 

Tim Alley 

Bianca Zibrat – Staff Support 

Michael Brown, Borough Manager 

PLANNING & LAND USE DEPARTMENT 

Alex Strawn, Planning & Land Use Director 
Jason Ortiz, Deputy Director of Planning 

Bianca Zibrat, Long-range Planner 

Location: 

MSB DSJ BLDG. 

Room 119 

350 E. Dahlia Ave. Palmer, AK 

April 25th, 

2025 

REGULAR

MEETING 

10:00 a.m. 

I. CALL TO ORDER – 10:01 AM

II. ROLL CALL – DETERMINATION OF QUORUM

Quorum established. Members Present: Randy Durham, Tim Alley. 

Members Present Online: Jesse Peterson, Charles Van Ravensway, Kristina Whitman, Pat 

Daniels  

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Tim Alley made the motion. Pat Daniels seconded it. The agenda was approved without 

objection. 

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 3 of 96



Transportation Advisory  Board Agenda February 25th 2025  Page 2 of 3 

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

• Draft Minutes from 2/14/2025: Pat Daniels made the motion to approve. Charles

Van Ravensway seconded it. 

VI. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION: no audience participation in this meeting.

VII. STAFF/ AGENCY REPORTS & PRESENTATIONS

• Introduction of new staff: Ashley Stick was introduced as the new Planning

Support Specialist.

• Vacancy Report: Tim Alley was introduced as new member of the Board.

VIII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

• Transit update: Bianca Zibrat explains that the borough has completed the

application draft for the 5307 grant funds and will submit it in the next few

days. The approval of a resolution in support of securing funding for the

continuity of public transit in the Matanuska Susitna Borough.is motioned by

Pat Daniels and seconded by Charles Van Ravenswaay The approval of a letter

of support for the grant application is motioned by Tim Alley and seconded by

Jesse Peterson.

• Revised Seldon-Bogard Corridor Access Management Plan: Jesse Peterson

recused participation as he is not a neutral part in that process because he is

currently working for HDR.  Alex Strawn makes a brief presentation as the

topic was extensively presented and explained in previous meetings. Pat Daniels

ask a question about the quantity of lanes and Alex Straw explains the reason is

that the plan is trying to minimize the removal of houses. Charles Van

Ravenswaaay asks if the gravel pit has been considered in the plan and Alex

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 4 of 96



Transportation Advisory  Board Agenda February 25th 2025  Page 3 of 3 

responds that it has. The approval of a resolution supporting assembly adoption 

of the Bogard/Seldon road corridor access management plan is motioned by 

Charles Van Ravenswaaay and seconded by Pat Daniels. 

IX. NEW BUSINESS: none

X. MEMBER COMMENTS: Alex Strawn asks about voting for vice-chair and suggests

adding the topic to the next meeting agenda. Pat apologizes for missing the previous

scheduled meeting, which was cancelled for not having a quorum. No more comments. 

XI. NEXT MEETING DATES: Next meeting scheduled for July 25th.

XII. ADJOURNMENT: 10:28 am

PACKET ATTACHMENTS: 

• Bogard/Seldon Corridor Access Management Plan Revisions for Final Draft

Plan

______________________________ 

Randy Durham, Chair            Date 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 

MSB Staff             Date 

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 5 of 96



Page 1 of 3 IM No. 25-126 

Ordinance Serial No. 25-073 

MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH INFORMATION MEMORANDUM IM No. 25-073 

SUBJECT: AN ORDINANCE OF THE MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH ASSEMBLY 

AMENDING MSB 17.02 MANDATORY LAND USE PERMIT, MSB 17.55 – SETBACK 

AND SCREENING EASEMENTS, MSB 17.65 VARIANCES, MSB 17.80 

NONCONFORMING STRUCTURES AND MSB 17.125 DEFINITIONS. 

AGENDA OF: May 20, 2025 

ASSEMBLY ACTION: 

AGENDA ACTION REQUESTED: Refer to Planning Commission for 120 days. 

Route To Signatures 

Originator 

5 / 8 / 2 0 2 5

X A l e x S t r a w n

S i g n e d b y : A l e x S t r a w n

Department Director 

5 / 8 / 2 0 2 5

X A l e x S t r a w n

S i g n e d b y : A l e x S t r a w n

Finance Director 

R e c o v e r a b l e S i g n a t u r e

X C h e y e n n e H e i n d e l

S i g n e d b y : C h e y e n n e H e i n d e l

Borough Attorney 

5 / 9 / 2 0 2 5

X N i c h o l a s S p i r o p o u l o s

S i g n e d b y :  N i c h o l a s S p i r o p o u l o s

Borough Manager 

5 / 9 / 2 0 2 5

X M i c h a e l B r o w n

S i g n e d b y : M i k e B r o w n

Borough Clerk 

R e c o v e r a b l e S i g n a t u r e

X L o n n i e M c K e c h n i e

S i g n e d b y : L o n n i e M c K e c h n i e

ATTACHMENT(S): Ordinance Serial No. 25-073 (23 pp) 

Waterbody Setback Advisory Board Reso 24-01 (5pp) 

1998 Shoreline Setback Analysis (23 pp) 

MSB 17.02 (4 pp) 

MSB 17.55 (5 pp) 

MSB 17.65 (4 pp) 

MSB 17.80 (7 pp) 

MSB 17.125 (17 pp) 

SUMMARY STATEMENT:  

This ordinance is at the request of Assemblymember Hale. 

The purpose of this ordinance is to modernize and strengthen 

borough regulations related to development activities near 

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 6 of 96



Page 2 of 3 IM No. 25-126 

Ordinance Serial No. 25-073 

waterbodies. The ordinance revises setback requirements, mandates 

land use permits for mechanized land clearing within 75 feet of 

waterbodies and establishes environmental protection standards. 

These changes aim to improve code compliance, reduce pollution 

from runoff, and protect fish habitat, water quality, and property 

values. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough first established a minimum 75-foot 

waterbody setback in 1973. In 1986, the Assembly temporarily 

reduced the setback to 45 feet; however, six months later, a voter 

initiative reinstated the 75-foot setback. Over the decades, 

limited enforcement of the setback requirements has resulted in 

the construction of hundreds of structures in violation of the 75-

foot standard. A 1998 review documented widespread non-compliance, 

and since then, violations have continued. These issues complicate 

real estate transactions, affect public trust, and threaten 

sensitive aquatic ecosystems. 

In response, the Assembly created the Waterbody Setback Advisory 

Board (WSAB), which included members representing home building, 

lending, real estate, salmon habitat, the Fish & Wildlife 

Commission, the Planning Commission, and at-large residents. The 

WSAB conducted an in-depth review of borough code and presented 

comprehensive recommendations to address the identified challenge.  

This ordinance incorporates the specific code amendments 

recommended by the Waterbody Setback Advisory Board. 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 

This ordinance implements several goals and policies of the 

Borough-wide Comprehensive Plan. 

Goal (LU-4): Protect and enhance the Borough's natural resources 

including 

watersheds, groundwater supplies and air quality. 

Policy LU4-1: Identify, monitor, protect, and enhance the 

quantity and quality of the Borough's watersheds, groundwater 

aquifers, and clean air resources. 

Goal (CQ-l): Protect natural systems and features from Ihe 

potentially negative impacts of11IIman activities, including, but 

not limited to, land development. 

Policy CQ1-1: Use a system-wide approach to effectively 

manage environmental resources. Coordinate land use planning 

and management of natural systems with affected state and 

local agencies as well as affected Community Council efforts. 

Policy CQl-2: Manage activities affecting air, vegetation, 

water, and the land to maintain or improve environmental 

quality, to preserve fish and wildlife habitat, to prevent 

degradation or loss of natural features and functions, and to 

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 7 of 96



Page 3 of 3 IM No. 25-126 

Ordinance Serial No. 25-073 

minimize risks to life and property. 

Goal (CQ-2): Manage the natural and built environments to achieve 

minimal loss of the functions and values of all drainage basins; 

and, where possible, enhance and restore functions, values, and 

features. Retain lakes, ponds, wetlands, streams, and rivers and 

their corridors substantially in their natural condition. 

Policy CQ2-1: Using a watershed-based approach, apply best 

available science in formulating regulations, incentives, and 

programs to maintain and, to the degree possible, improve the 

quality of the Borough's water resources. 

Policy CQ2-2: Comprehensively manage activities that may 

adversely impact surface and ground water quality or quantity. 

Policy CQ2-3: When appropriate, utilize Borough adopted "Best 

Management Practices" when managing watershed impacts. 

RECOMMENDATION OF ADMINISTRATION: Refer to the Planning Commission 

for 120 days. 

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 8 of 96



Action:Approved 

MA~ANUSKA-SUSIDA. BOROUGH 
WA~EBBODY SETBACK ADVISORY BOARD 

USOL~ION SERIAL NO. 24-01 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH WATERBODY SETBACK 
ADVISORY BOARD RECOMMENDING CHANGES TO MSB 1 7. 55 - SETBACK AND 
SCREENING EASEMENTS, MSB 17.02 - MANDATORY LAND USE PERMIT, MSB 
17.80 NONCONFORMING STRUCTURES, AND MSB 17.65 - VARIANCES. 

WHEREAS, the Matanuska-Susitna Borough Assembly established 

the Waterbody Setback Advisory Board through IM No. 23-175 and 

Ordinance No. 23-175 on 8/15/2023 to review and recommend any 

changes to the Borough code relating to waterbody setbacks and 

related issues. These related issues should include variances/non­

conformities, how to deal with structures built in violation of 

the 1973 and 1987 ordinances, possible remedies for structures in 

violation, and any other issues the Board believes are pertinent. 

To the extent possible, the Advisory Board is required to identify 

possible solutions, identify ways to enforce and implement those 

solutions and identify resources needed to implement and enforce 

those solutions; and 

WHEREAS, the preservation and protection of our natural 

water bodies are recognized as essential for the sustainability of 

ecological balance, ensuring public safety, enhancing the beauty 

of our community, the conservation of viewsheds, enriching the 

quality of life, safeguarding community characteristics, and 

Page 1 of 5 Waterbody Setback Advisory Board 
Resolution Serial No. 24-01 

IM 25-126
OR 25-073

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 9 of 96



upholding property values. These water bodies serve as critical 

habitats for diverse flora and fauna, including salmon and other 

fish, contribute to local biodiversity, support recreational 

activities, and play a crucial role in the broader ecosystem 

services that benefit both residents and wildlife alike; and 

WHEREAS, the activities conducted adjacent to waterbodies, 

such as construction, grading, clearing, filling, or contouring, 

are known to have a profound impact on water quality, the 

preservation of natural habitats, and the overall health and 

sustainability of aquatic ecosystems. These activities can lead to 

sedimentation, alteration of hydrological patterns, habitat 

fragmentation, and the introduction of pollutants, all of which 

threaten the quality of life and community for residents, the 

ecological balance, and biodiversity crucial to the well-being of 

these environments; and 
I 

WHEREAS, there has been a recognition of the necessity for 

increased regulation and oversight to prevent adverse effects on 

waterbodies resulting from unregulated or improperly managed land­

use activities. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Waterbody Setback 

Advisory Board hereby makes the following recommendations to the 

Assembly: 

1. Path to Compliance for Homeowners: The Assembly is advised 

Page 2 of 5 Waterbody Setback Advisory Board 
Resolution Serial No. 24-01 

IM 25-126
OR 25-073

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 10 of 96



to establish a path to compliance for homes built within the 75-

foot setback area of lakes in violation of MSB 17. 55. This 

co~pliance pathway should require the design and construction of 

mitigation measures to be developed and overseen by a qualified 

professional registered in the State of Alaska, and should maintain 

a minimum setback of 45 feet. 

2. Setback Maintenance and Expansion: The Waterbody Setback 

Advisory Board recommends retaining the current 75-foot setback 

requirement for buildings adjacent to flowing water. 

3. Commercial and industrial development: Recommend waterbody 

setback be applied to include commercial and industrial projects. 

4. Land Use Permit Requirement: It is recommended that MSB 

17. 02 be amended to mandate a land use permit for any grading, 

clearing, filling, contouring, or construction activities within 

75 feet of waterbodies. This measure seeks to ensure thorough 

review and management of all such activities to minimize adverse 

impacts on waterbody ecosystems. 

5. Shoreline standards: Adopt standards for clearing and 

grading within 75 feet of waterbodies to include provisions for 

managing runoff associated with the development, and maintaining 

a vegetative buffer along the shoreline. 

6. Animal Waste Management: Adopt a setback requirement of 

100 feet from the ord~nary high-water mark of waterbodies for 

Page 3 of 5 Waterbody Setback Advisory Board 
Resolution Serial No. 24-01 

IM 25-126
OR 25-073

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 11 of 96



outdoor kennels, stables, animal yards, and animal waste 

facilities to enhance environmental protection. 

7. Prevention of Liquid Petroleum Fuel Contamination: Adopt 

measures to mitigate the risk of liquid fuel contamination near 

waterbodies by requiring secondary containment or drip collection 

for all fuel installations within 75 feet of waterbodies, including 

both existing and new installations. 

8. Enhanced Enforcement: Recognizing the importance of 

enforcing setback regulations effectively, it is recommended that 

additional staff be hired to patrol water bodies. Their presence 

will deter violations, ensure adherence to established laws, and 

offer an immediate response to any observed infractions. 

9. Structures within 45 feet: It is recommended that a minimum 

45-foot water body setback be maintained with no path to compliance 

for structures illegally built within 45 feet of a water body. 

10. Limitation of Variances: It is recommended that MSB 17.65 

be amended to eliminate the ability to obtain a variance within 45 

feet of a waterbody. 

11. New habitat protection tax incentive: The Assembly is 

encouraged to consider the establishment of a habitat protection 

tax incentive, similar to the program in the Kenai Peninsula 

Borough, and advocate for state legislation that extends coverage 

to all types of waterbodies, not limited to rivers. 

Page 4 of 5 Waterbody Setback Advisory Board 
Resolution Serial No. 24-01 

IM 25-126
OR 25-073

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 12 of 96



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Waterbody Setback Advisory Board 

has attached a draft ordinance reflecting its recommendations for 

the Assembly to consider. 

ADOPTED by the Matanuska-Susitna Borough Waterbody Setback 
Advisory Board this 5th day of March, 2025. 

Page 5 of 5 

ATTEST: 

Waterbody Setback Advisory Board 
Resolution Serial No. 24-01 

IM 25-126
OR 25-073

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 13 of 96



MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 14 of 96



MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 15 of 96



CHAPTER 17.02: MANDATORY LAND USE PERMIT

Section

17.02.010  Intent and applicability

17.02.020  Land use permit

17.02.030  Procedure

17.02.040  Action on applications

17.02.010 INTENT AND APPLICABILITY.

(A) It is the intent of this chapter to improve the level of compliance with existing borough code by establishing

a mandatory land use review process and directly providing regulatory information to persons proposing

development within the borough outside of the cities of Houston, Palmer, and Wasilla.

(B) This chapter is applicable within all areas of the Matanuska-Susitna Borough outside of the cities of

Houston, Palmer, and Wasilla and the Port District, as established in MSB 18.02.020, Boundaries.

(C) There are federal, state, and local requirements governing land use. It is the responsibility of the individual

land owners to obtain a determination whether such requirements apply to the development of their land. Any

land within the boundaries of the Matanuska-Susitna Borough is subject to land use and development

regulations. It is not the intent of this chapter to replace or supersede regulations of other chapters within this

title. Additional information and permits, such as flood damage prevention, mobile home park ordinance,

conditional uses, and regulation of alcoholic beverages may be required in accordance with the borough code.

This title will be amended and updated as necessary when new MSB Title 17 regulations are adopted.

(D) A land use permit is not required where commencement of construction or placement, as defined in MSB

17.125, occurred before the effective date of the ordinance codified in this chapter.

(Ord. 10-108, § 2, 2010; Ord. 07-121, § 2, 2007; Ord. 06-192(AM), § 3 (part), 2007)

17.02.020 LAND USE PERMIT.

(A) The land owner or authorized agent shall obtain a land use permit from the Matanuska-Susitna Borough

Planning Department prior to the commencement of:

(1) [Repealed by Ord. 11-073, § 2, 2011]

(2) [Repealed by Ord. 11-073, § 2, 2011]

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.02: MANDATORY LAND USE PERMIT Page 1 of 4

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 16 of 96



(3)    [Repealed by Ord. 11-073, § 2, 2011]

(4)    [Repealed by Ord. 11-073, § 2, 2011]

(5)    [Repealed by Ord. 13-025, § 2, 2013]

(6)    construction or placement of any building within 75 feet of any watercourse or water body;

(B)    A landowner or authorized agent may voluntarily request a land use permit for any structure or use not

required to obtain a permit under this chapter.

(C)    A permit is not required under this chapter when the proposed use is subject to another permit within this

title.

(Ord. 22-104, § 2, 2022; Ord. 13-025, § 2, 2013: Ord. 11-073, § 2, 2011: Ord. 06-192(AM), § 3 (part), 2007)

17.02.030 PROCEDURE.

(A)    A complete land use permit application shall be submitted to the planning and land use director on a form

provided by the planning and land use department.

(B)    A complete land use permit application will contain the following attachments:

(1)    [Repealed by Ord. 22-104, § 3, 2022], 2011]

(2)    site plan;

(a)    site plans are not required to be certified but shall clearly identify the following:

(i)    north arrow;

(ii)    boundaries of parcel;

(iii)    size, location, and setback dimensions of proposed structures;

(iv)    names and location of adjacent roadways;

(v)    location of rights-of-way and public easements within and adjacent to the parcel;

(vi)    location and name of adjacent water bodies;

(vii)    location of subsurface sewage disposal systems; and

(viii)    intended use of proposed structures.

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.02: MANDATORY LAND USE PERMIT Page 2 of 4

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 17 of 96



(3)    [Repealed by Ord. 11-073, § 3 (part), 2011]

(4)    [Repealed by Ord. 11-073, § 3 (part), 2011]

(C)    [Repealed by Ord. 11-073, § 3 (part), 2011]

(D)    [Repealed by Ord. 11-073, § 3 (part), 2011]

(E)    An application fee as established by the assembly, payable to the Matanuska-Susitna Borough, shall be

submitted with the application. If more than one land use permit fee is required under this chapter, the applicant

shall pay only one fee, whichever is the highest.

(F)    A copy of the application shall be retained in the planning and land use department files.

(Ord. 22-104, § 3, 2022; Ord. 11-073, § 3 (part), 2011: Ord. 06-192(AM), § 3 (part), 2007)

17.02.040 ACTION ON APPLICATIONS.

(A)    The planning and land use director or designated staff shall determine whether an application for a land use

permit is complete. For incomplete applications, a written explanation of application deficiencies shall be

provided within seven working days of the date the application is received in the planning and land use

department.

(B)    [Repealed by Ord. 22-104, § 4, 2022], 2011]

(C)    In reviewing a land use permit application, the planning and land use director shall make specific findings

explaining how the proposal does or does not conform to the requirements of this title. The planning and land use

director also may provide options as to how the proposal may conform to these requirements.

(D)    The planning and land use director shall render a decision within ten working days from the date the

application is determined complete.

(1)    Permits under this chapter shall be reviewed and approved based on compliance with borough code,

including but not limited to the following:

(a)    setbacks;

(b)    special land use districts;

(c)    flood hazard areas;

(d)    driveway permits;

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.02: MANDATORY LAND USE PERMIT Page 3 of 4

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 18 of 96



(e)    conditional uses; and

(f)    multifamily development permits.

(E)    If a decision is not rendered within the allotted review time, the applicant shall be entitled to a complete

refund of fees.

(F)    [Repealed by Ord. 22-104, § 4, 2022], 2011]

(G)    [Repealed by Ord. 22-104, § 4, 2022], 2011]

(H)    [Repealed by Ord. 22-104, § 4, 2022], 2011]

(I)    Appeals from a decision granting or denying a land use permit under this chapter shall be filed and

conducted in accordance with MSB 15.39.

(Ord. 22-104, § 4, 2022; Ord. 11-073, § 3 (part), 2011: Ord. 06-192(AM), § 3 (part), 2007)

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.02: MANDATORY LAND USE PERMIT Page 4 of 4

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 19 of 96



MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 20 of 96



MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 21 of 96



MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 22 of 96



MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 23 of 96



MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 24 of 96



MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 25 of 96



MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 26 of 96



MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 27 of 96



MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 28 of 96



MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 29 of 96



MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 30 of 96



MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 31 of 96



MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 32 of 96



MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 33 of 96



MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 34 of 96



MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 35 of 96



MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 36 of 96



MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 37 of 96



MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 38 of 96



MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 39 of 96



MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 40 of 96



CHAPTER 17.55: SETBACKS AND SCREENING EASEMENTS

Section

17.55.004  Definitions

17.55.005  General

17.55.010  Setbacks

17.55.015  Shorelands; definition [Repealed]

17.55.020  Setbacks for shorelands

17.55.040  Violations, enforcement, and penalties

17.55.004 DEFINITIONS.

(A) For the purpose of this chapter, the following definitions shall apply unless the context clearly indicates or

requires a different meaning.

• “Aircraft hangar” means a roofed structure which is used to completely or partially enclose and store aircraft

and aircraft accessories.

• “Boathouse” means a roofed structure which is used to completely or partially enclose and store boats and

boating accessories.

• “Building” means any structure intended for the shelter, housing, or enclosure of any individual, animal,

process, equipment, goods, or materials of any kind or nature.

• “Building line” means the line of that part of the building nearest the property line.

• “Dedication” means the reservation of land to a public use by the owner manifesting the intention that it shall

be accepted and used presently or in the future for such public purpose. A dedication by the owner under the

terms of this section is a conveyance of an interest in property which shall be deemed to include the warranties

of title listed in A.S. 34.15.030. The dedication of streets, alleys, sidewalks, or public open space shall convey a

fee interest in the area dedicated. The dedication of all other public rights-of-way shall be deemed to create an

easement in gross to perform the indicated function in the area depicted.

• “Engineer” means a registered professional civil engineer authorized to practice engineering in the state of

Alaska.

• “Incidental” means subordinate and minor in significance and bearing a reasonable relationship to the primary

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.55: SETBACKS AND SCREENING
EASEMENTS

Page 1 of 5

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 41 of 96



• “Incidental” means subordinate and minor in significance and bearing a reasonable relationship to the primary

use.

• “Lot” means the least fractional part of subdivided lands having limited fixed boundaries and having an

assigned number, or other name through which it may be identified.

• “Lot depth” means the average distance between front and rear lot lines.

• “Lot frontage” means all property abutting the right-of-way of a dedicated street or road easement, measured

along the right-of-way between side lot lines of a lot.

• “Lot width” means the average distance between side lot lines.

• “Ordinary high water mark” means the mark made by the action of water under natural conditions on the

shore or bank of a body of water which action has been so common and usual that it has created a difference

between the character of the vegetation or soil on one side of the mark and character of the vegetation and soil

on the other side of the mark.

• “Parcel” means an unsubdivided plot of land.

• “Right-of-way” means a strip of land reserved, used, or to be used for a street, alley, walkway, airport, or

other public or private purpose.

• “Structure” means anything that is constructed or created and located on or above the ground, or attached to

something fixed to the ground. For purposes of minimum setbacks and building separation requirements, the

following are not considered structures unless specifically addressed by code: signs; fences; retaining walls;

parking areas; roads, driveways, or walkways; window awnings; a temporary building when used for 30 days or

less; utility boxes and other incidental structures related to utility services; utility poles and lines; guy wires;

clotheslines; flagpoles; planters; incidental yard furnishings; water wells; monitoring wells; and/or tubes, patios,

decks, or steps less than 18 inches above average grade.

• “Subdivision” means the division of a tract or parcel of land into two or more lots, sites, or other divisions, or

the combining of two or more lots, tracts, or parcels into one lot, tract, or parcel for the purpose, whether

immediate or future, of sale or lease for more than ten years, including any resubdivision and when appropriate

to the context, the process of subdividing or the land actually subdivided.

• “Surveyor” means a professional land surveyor who is registered in the state of Alaska.

• “Utility box” means electric transformers, switch boxes, telephone pedestals and telephone boxes, cable

television boxes, traffic control boxes, and similar devices.

• “Utility services” means the generation, transmission, or distribution of electricity, gas, communications, and

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.55: SETBACKS AND SCREENING
EASEMENTS

Page 2 of 5

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 42 of 96



municipal water and sewer systems.

(Ord. 22-063, § 3, 2022; Ord. 21-019, § 2, 2021; Ord. 17-088(SUB), § 2, 2017; Ord. 13-164, §§ 2, 3, 2013; Ord.

93-042, § 2 (part), 1993; Ord. 89-072, § 2 (part), 1989; Ord. 88-221, § 2 (part), 1988)

17.55.005 GENERAL.

This chapter establishes minimum structural setbacks from lot lines, water courses and water bodies, rights-of-

way, and specific screening easements for certain lands within subdivisions in the Matanuska-Susitna Borough

except where otherwise specified in special land use district regulations within this title.

(Ord. 03-053, § 2, 2003; Ord. 88-190, § 3 (part), 1988)

17.55.010 SETBACKS.

(A)    No structure or building line shall be placed within 25 feet from the right-of-way line of any public right-of-

way, except no furthermost protruding portion of any structure shall be placed within ten feet from the right-of-

way line of any public right-of-way when the pre-existing lot:

(1)    measures 60 feet or less in frontage on a public right-of-way, and is not located on a cul-de-sac bulb;

or

(2)    comprises a nonconforming structure erected prior to July 3, 1973. This setback shall be known as

the structure or building line setback.

(B)    Except where specifically provided other-wise by ordinance, no furthermost protruding portion of any

structure or building line shall be located nearer than ten feet from any side or rear lot line.

(C)    Except as otherwise specified by code, eaves may project a maximum of three feet into required setback

areas.

(D)    The setback requirements of this section do not apply to property within the cities of Palmer and Wasilla.

(E)    If a condemnation by a governmental agency reduces the building line setback of a structure below 25 feet,

but there remains at least ten feet setback, and the setback reduced by the condemnation met the requirements

of this section prior to the condemnation, the resulting setback shall be the setback requirements for the lot.

(F)    For purposes of this chapter, commercial or industrial buildings on separate but adjacent parcels, which

otherwise meet the setback requirements, may have connecting pedestrian walkways, enclosed or not.

Pedestrian walkways:

(1)    shall not contribute to the building area or the number of stories or height of connected buildings; and

(2)    must comply with the current adopted edition of the International Building Code, except that the

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.55: SETBACKS AND SCREENING
EASEMENTS

Page 3 of 5

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 43 of 96



outside width of the walkway shall not exceed 30 feet in width, exclusive of eaves.

(G)    No furthermost protruding portion of any structure or building line shall be located nearer than ten feet from

railroad rights-of-way, except that utilities and rail dependent structures may extend up to railroad rights-of-way.

(Ord. 11-159, § 2, 2011; Ord. 11-019, § 2, 2011; Ord. 93-042, § 2 (part), 1993; Ord. 88-190, § 3 (part), 1988)

17.55.015 Shorelands; definition. [Repealed by Ord. 17-088(SUB), § 3, 2017]
17.55.020 SETBACKS FOR SHORELANDS.

(A)    Except as provided in subsection (B) of this section, no structure or footing shall be located closer than 75

feet from the ordinary high water mark of a body of water. Except as provided otherwise, eaves may project

three feet into the required setback area.

(B)    Docks, piers, marinas, aircraft hangars, and boathouses may be located closer than 75 feet and over the

water, provided they are not used for habitation and do not contain sanitary or petroleum fuel storage facilities.

Structures permitted over water under this subsection shall conform to all applicable state and federal statutes

and regulations.

(1)    Boathouses or aircraft hangars which are exempt from a minimum shoreline setback for structures

shall:

(a)    be built over, in, or immediately adjacent to a waterbody and used solely for storing boats and

boating accessories;

(b)    be designed, constructed and oriented for primary access by boats or aircraft directly to a

waterbody;

(c)    not have more than incidental accessory access to a street or driveway; and

(d)    not be usable as a garage or habitable structure without significant alteration.

(C)    In the city of Wasilla, this section does not apply to structures where construction was completed prior to

November 16, 1982. Elsewhere in the borough, this section does not apply to structures where construction was

completed prior to January 1, 1987, if the present owner or owners of the property had no personal knowledge of

any violation of the requirements of this section prior to substantial completion of the structures. The director of

the planning department shall, upon application by a property owner, determine whether a property qualifies for

an exception under this subsection.

(1)    An application for a shoreline setback exception shall include a filing fee as established by resolution

of the assembly.

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.55: SETBACKS AND SCREENING
EASEMENTS

Page 4 of 5

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 44 of 96



(D)    In this section, a “structure” is any dwelling or habitable building or garage.

(E)    No part of a subsurface sewage disposal system shall be closer than 100 feet from the ordinary high water

mark of any body of water. The planning commission shall require this distance be increased where necessary

to protect waters within the borough.

(Ord. 17-088(SUB), § 4, 2017: IM 96-019, page 1, presented 3-19-96; Ord. 93-095, § 2, 1993; Ord. 93-042, § 2

(part), 1993; Ord. 90-052, § 3, 1990; Ord. 88-190, § 3 (part), 1988; initiative election of 5-5-87)

17.55.040 VIOLATIONS, ENFORCEMENT, AND PENALTIES.

(A)    Except as otherwise specified in this chapter violations of this chapter are infractions.

(B)    Remedies, enforcement actions, and penalties shall be consistent with the terms and provisions of MSB

1.45.

(Ord. 95-088(SUB)(am), § 26 (part), 1995)

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.55: SETBACKS AND SCREENING
EASEMENTS

Page 5 of 5

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 45 of 96



CHAPTER 17.65: VARIANCES

Section

17.65.010  Intent

17.65.020  Requirements for granting a variance

17.65.030  Cases where variance is illegal

17.65.040  Variance; conditions of approval

17.65.050  Initiation of a variance request

17.65.070  Planning commission action

17.65.080  Record of variances

17.65.090  Termination of variances

17.65.100  Appeal procedure

17.65.110  Violations, enforcement, and penalties

17.65.010 INTENT.

This chapter addresses variances not otherwise addressed within this title. It is not intended that this chapter

replace or supersede variance regulations of other chapters within this title, nor is it intended that this chapter

address variances to conditional uses.

(Ord. 90-56, § 3 (part), 1990)

17.65.020 REQUIREMENTS FOR GRANTING A VARIANCE.

(A) In order to grant a variance to the regulations of MSB title 17, the planning commission must find that each

of the following requirements has been met:

(1) There are unusual conditions or circumstances that apply to the property for which the variance is

sought.

(2) The strict application of the provisions of this title would deprive the applicant of rights commonly

enjoyed by other properties under the terms of this title.

(3) The granting of the variance will not be injurious to nearby property, nor harmful to the public welfare.

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.65: VARIANCES Page 1 of 4

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 46 of 96



(4)    The granting of the variance will be in harmony with the objectives of this title and any applicable

comprehensive plans.

(5)    The deviation from the requirement of this title that is permitted by the variance will be no more than is

necessary to permit a reasonable use of the property.

(Ord. 90-56, § 3 (part), 1990)

17.65.030 CASES WHERE VARIANCE IS ILLEGAL.

(A)    A variance from this title may not be granted if:

(1)    special conditions that require the variance are caused by the person seeking the variance;

(2)    the variance will permit a land use in a district in which that use is prohibited;

(3)    the variance is sought solely to relieve pecuniary hardship or inconvenience.

(Ord. 90-56, § 3 (part), 1990)

17.65.040 VARIANCE; CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL.

(A)    The planning commission, in granting a variance, may prescribe any conditions and safe-guards that it

deems to be necessary or desirable to:

(1)    assure conformity with this title and any applicable comprehensive plans;

(2)    protect adjacent properties;

(3)    protect the public health, safety and welfare.

(Ord. 90-56, § 3 (part), 1990)

17.65.050 INITIATION OF A VARIANCE REQUEST.

(A)    A request to the planning commission for a variance to the requirements of MSB title 17 may be initiated by

the property owner or the manager’s authorized agent.

(B)    A variance application shall be filed with the planning director on a form provided by the planning

department.

(C)    An application for a variance shall include:

(1)    a legal description of the property involved;

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.65: VARIANCES Page 2 of 4

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 47 of 96



(2)    a description of the variance requested, including the code section reference;

(3)    a specific statement of the reasons why the variance is required and conforms to the requirements of

MSB 17.65.020;

(4)    a site plan or as-built of the particular parcel or parcels affected, submitted under the seal of a

professional land surveyor, which shows all information relevant to the variance request;

(5)    an appropriate filing fee as established by the assembly, payable to the borough.

(Ord. 90-56, § 3 (part), 1990)

17.65.070 PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION.

The planning commission shall hear any interested parties and shall render a written decision on the variance

application within 30 calendar days from the closure of public hearing.

(Ord. 90-56, § 3 (part), 1990)

17.65.080 RECORD OF VARIANCES.

The planning department shall keep a record of all variances.

(Ord. 90-56, § 3 (part), 1990)

17.65.090 TERMINATION OF VARIANCES.

(A)    Any variance granted shall become null and void if:

(1)    the variance is not exercised within one year after being granted;

(2)    any structure or characteristic of use permitted by a variance is moved, removed or discontinued.

(Ord. 90-56, § 3 (part), 1990)

17.65.100 APPEAL PROCEDURE.

Decisions by the planning commission on a variance application may be appealed to the borough board of

adjustment and appeals. Appeals shall be filed and conducted in accordance with MSB 15.39.

(IM 96-013, page 1 (part), presented 3-19-96; Ord. 90-56, § 3 (part), 1990)

17.65.110 VIOLATIONS, ENFORCEMENT, AND PENALTIES.

(A)    Except as otherwise specified in this chapter violations of this chapter are infractions.

(B)    Remedies, enforcement actions, and penalties shall be consistent with the terms and provisions of MSB

1.45.

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.65: VARIANCES Page 3 of 4

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 48 of 96



(Ord. 95-088(SUB)(am), § 30 (part), 1995)

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.65: VARIANCES Page 4 of 4

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 49 of 96



CHAPTER 17.80: NONCONFORMING STRUCTURES

Section

17.80.010  Intent

17.80.020  Legal nonconforming structures

17.80.030  Fees

17.80.040  Written determination required

17.80.050  Nonconforming lots of record

17.80.060  Standards for nonconforming structures

17.80.070  Application for a determination of legal nonconforming status

17.80.080  Repairs and maintenance

17.80.090  Restoration of damaged property

17.80.100  Termination of nonconformities

17.80.110  Violations and enforcement

17.80.010 INTENT.

(A) Within the Matanuska-Susitna Borough there may exist lots, permanent structures, and uses of land and

structures, which were lawful before the effective date of the applicable regulations but which would be

prohibited, regulated or restricted under the terms of current regulations, or a future amendment. Except as

otherwise provided by code, it is the intent of this chapter to permit nonconforming permanent structures to

remain until they are removed or abandoned but not to encourage their perpetuation. It is not intended that this

chapter replace or supersede nonconformity regulations in other chapters within this title. This ordinance is

promulgated pursuant to AS 29.40.040(A)(2) “Land Use Regulations” and encourages the minimization of the

unfavorable effects of the construction of structures that do not conform to code.

(B) Nothing in this chapter requires a change in the plans or construction of any building actually under

construction or development prior to the effective date of adoption of this ordinance as long as the building was

allowable under the code in effect at the start of development. Where excavation, demolition or removal of an

existing building has begun in preparation of rebuilding, such excavation, demolition or removal shall be

considered to be actual construction or development, provided that continuous progress is being made toward

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.80: NONCONFORMING STRUCTURES Page 1 of 7

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 50 of 96



completion of the project. Development is defined as any man-made change to improved or unimproved real

estate, including but not limited to buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving,

excavation, or drilling operations.

(Ord. 95-011(SUB1), § 3 (part), 1995)

17.80.020 LEGAL NONCONFORMING STRUCTURES.

(A)    The following structures qualify as legal nonconforming structures without an administrative determination,

however, an administrative determination may be issued if requested by the property owner:

(1)    structures built lawfully and made nonconforming by adoption of subsequent ordinances;

(2)    structures built in violation of the ordinance existing at the time of construction, then made legal by

adoption of subsequent ordinance, and later made nonconforming by adoption of subsequent ordinances;

(3)    permanent structures which were constructed lawfully after the date of adoption of the

Acknowledgement of Existing Regulations, Chapter 17.01, but which were made unlawful after the date of

start of construction due to adoption of subsequent regulations.

(B)    The following structures require an administrative determination in order to be granted legal nonconforming

status;

(1)    structures granted a variance in accordance with Chapter 17.65;

(2)    structures built in violation of shoreline setback ordinances existing at the time of construction, and

subsequently granted an exemption from shoreline setbacks in accordance with MSB 17.55.020(C);

(3)    permanent structures built in violation of ordinances existing at the time of construction, and

subsequently granted legal nonconforming status in accordance with MSB 17.80.070.

(Ord. 95-011(SUB1), § 3 (part), 1995)

17.80.030 FEES.

(A)    Applications for determination of legal nonconforming status, made pursuant to MSB 17.80.020(A)(1), (2)

and (3), and (B)(1) and (2), are not subject to fees set forth in MSB 17.80.070.

(B)    Applications for determination of legal nonconforming status, made pursuant to MSB 17.80.020(B)(3) are

subject to fees as set forth in MSB 17.80.070.

(Ord. 95-011(SUB1), § 3 (part), 1995)

17.80.040 WRITTEN DETERMINATION REQUIRED.

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.80: NONCONFORMING STRUCTURES Page 2 of 7

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 51 of 96



Nonconforming structures, covered under MSB 17.80.020(B)(3), shall not have legal nonconforming status for

purposes of this chapter unless a written administrative determination of legal nonconforming status has been

issued by the planning director, pursuant to MSB 17.80.070.

(Ord. 95-011(SUB1), § 3 (part), 1995)

17.80.050 NONCONFORMING LOTS OF RECORD.

Structures and accessory buildings may be erected on nonconforming lots of record as long as they meet all

applicable provisions of code. This provision shall apply even though the lot fails to meet the requirements for

area, or width, or both, currently applicable.

(Ord. 95-011(SUB1), § 3 (part), 1995)

17.80.060 STANDARDS FOR NONCONFORMING STRUCTURES.

(A)    Where a permanent structure exists that could not be built under the terms of the current regulations, the

structure may continue to exist as long as it remains lawful subject to subsections (1) through (4) of this

subsection. However:

(1)    a nonconforming structure may not be enlarged or altered in any way unless the alteration or

enlargement is otherwise specifically allowed by code. Any nonconforming structure or portion of a

nonconforming structure may be altered to decrease its nonconformity.

(2)    a nonconforming structure may not be enlarged or altered vertically or horizontally in a way which

would increase the height, width, depth, area, or volume of the structure except as specifically allowed by

current code for similar new structures in that location. A nonconforming structure which straddles a

required minimum setback line may be expanded vertically or horizontally only where the expansion is

located outside the minimum setback distance.

(3)    the physical location of a nonconforming structure may be changed only to reduce or eliminate the

nonconformity.

(4)    an existing structure devoted to a use not permitted by code shall not be enlarged, extended, moved,

or structurally altered.

(B)    Structures found in violation of any of the standards set forth in subsection (A) of this section, are not

eligible for a determination of legal nonconforming status.

(C)    Structures which are in trespass are not eligible for a legal nonconforming status determination.

(D)    [Repealed by Ord. 17-142, § 3, 2018]

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.80: NONCONFORMING STRUCTURES Page 3 of 7

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 52 of 96



(E) The planning director may not grant legal nonconforming status, pursuant to MSB 17.80.070, unless the

applicant provides evidence that the structure was erected prior to the adoption of the Acknowledgment of

Existing Land Use Regulations, MSB 17.01.

(F) The planning director will consider public health, safety, and welfare concerns raised in comments received

pursuant to MSB 17.80.070(C) when making a determination whether to grant a legal nonconforming

determination.

(Ord. 17-142, § 3, 2018; Ord. 01-016, § 2, 2001; Ord. 95-011(SUB1), § 3 (part), 1995)

17.80.070 APPLICATION FOR A DETERMINATION OF LEGAL NONCONFORMING STATUS.

(A) An application for a determination of legal nonconforming status may be initiated by the property owner or

his authorized agent. The application shall be filed with the planning director on a form provided by the planning

department. The application shall be accompanied by a nonrefundable application fee, established by the

assembly, and made payable to the Matanuska-Susitna Borough. The planning director may not grant legal

nonconforming status unless the applicant provides evidence that the structure was erected prior to the adoption

of the Acknowledgment of Existing Land Use Regulations chapter except as noted herein.

(B) In addition to the completed application form, the submittal shall contain the following items:

(1) description and photographs of the structure;

(2) as-built drawing(s), prepared by a professional surveyor, registered in the state of Alaska, verifying

the location(s) or the structure(s);

(3) any other documentation the planning director may deem necessary to evaluate the application.

(C) When an application is submitted, the borough shall give notice of the application by publication in a

newspaper of general circulation in the borough at least 15 calendar days before the earliest date the planning

director may render a decision.

(D) Notice of the application shall be mailed to owners of all property within 600 feet of the lot lines of the

property containing the nonconforming structure at least 10 calendar days prior to the earliest date upon which

the planning director may make a final decision on the application. The notice shall contain the following:

(1) the earliest date a decision may be rendered;

(2) brief description of the application;

(3) a vicinity map of the area surrounding the subject property;

(4) legal description of the subject property;

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.80: NONCONFORMING STRUCTURES Page 4 of 7

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 53 of 96



(5)    the names of the applicants and owners of the subject property;

(6)    the planning department’s telephone number; and

(7)    identify the location where the application and other supporting material will be available for public

inspection.

(E)    Prior to the date of the decision, the applicant shall pay the cost of all mailings or advertisements required

by this section.

(Ord. 95-011(SUB1), § 3 (part), 1995)

17.80.080 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE.

Except as otherwise addressed by code, nothing in this chapter shall prevent keeping in good repair a

nonconforming permanent building or a building in which a nonconforming use is conducted. However, any

building that is declared by an authorized official to be unsafe or unlawful by reason of physical condition shall

not be restored, repaired or rebuilt in violation of the standards set forth in MSB 17.80.060(A).

(Ord. 95-011(SUB1), § 3 (part), 1995)

17.80.090 RESTORATION OF DAMAGED PROPERTY.

(A)    Except as otherwise addressed by borough code, nothing in this ordinance shall prevent restoration and

subsequent continued occupancy and use of a permanent building destroyed to up to 50 percent of its

replacement value by fire, explosion, or other casualty or act of God.

(B)    A dwelling made nonconforming through adoption or amendments to Title 17, Zoning, may be replaced or

reconstructed within two years after accidental damage or accidental destruction by fire, explosion, or other

casualty or act of God. Reconstruction or replacement not completed within two years of the date of the damage

is prohibited except in compliance with current regulations. Replacement or reconstruction may be undertaken in

the same three dimensional space that it occupied prior to damage or destruction even though the damage or

destruction exceeded 50 percent of its replacement value provided it was a legal structure at the date of

construction. Except as otherwise specifically allowed by code, reconstruction and replacement shall not

increase the height, depth, area, or volume of the structure beyond that which existed on the date the structure

became a pre-existing legal nonconforming structure.

(1)    The borough manager may grant a one time extension of the allowed time to complete rebuilding of a

pre-existing legal nonconforming structure which is otherwise eligible for reconstruction under this section.

To grant the time extension authorized under this section, the borough manager must find from evidence

presented that:

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.80: NONCONFORMING STRUCTURES Page 5 of 7

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 54 of 96



(a)    the requirement to rebuild within two years from the date of destruction would result in undue

hardship on the applicant;

(b)    the applicant diligently pursued reconstruction during the original two-year period; and

(c)    the need for an extension is caused by unforeseen and unavoidable circumstances beyond the

control of the applicant.

(2)    The extension shall be for a specific amount of time, not to exceed three years from the original two-

year deadline.

(3)    An application for the three-year extension of time to rebuild a pre-existing legal nonconforming

structure shall be submitted in writing to the borough manager and shall provide sufficient detail to describe

the proposed structure and its compliance with applicable borough code. The application must also contain

the evidence required by MSB 17.80.090(B)(1)(a-c).

(4)    The borough manager will review the application and make a decision regarding the request. A public

hearing is not required. Appeals of this decision are as prescribed in MSB 15.39.030.

(C)    The percentage of loss, under MSB 17.80.090(A) and (B) shall be determined by an independent adjustor

or appraiser who is Financial Institutions Reform and Recovery Enforcement Act (FIRREA) certified or the

appraisal must be accompanied by the appraiser’s license number and certification of type of appraisal they are

licensed to perform.

(Ord. 01-016, § 3, 2001; Ord. 99-197, § 2, 1999; Ord. 95-011(SUB1), § 3 (part), 1995)

17.80.100 TERMINATION OF NONCONFORMITIES.

When a legal nonconforming permanent structure is abandoned for a period of one year or more, the building

shall not then be used except in compliance with this chapter. For the purposes of this chapter, abandonment

means discontinuation or failure to complete construction and begin use, for a continuous period of more than

one year. Whether the property owners intended to abandon the structure is not relevant to an abandonment

determination. Reconstruction of a damaged nonconforming structure is not prohibited after the one-year period

if the reconstruction was prohibited due to lawful orders issued by a court or in the course of an arson or criminal

investigation.

(Ord. 95-011(SUB1), § 3 (part), 1995)

17.80.110 VIOLATIONS AND ENFORCEMENT.

Violations and enforcement of this chapter shall be consistent with the terms and provisions of Chapter 17.56.

(Ord. 95-011(SUB1), § 3 (part), 1995)

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.80: NONCONFORMING STRUCTURES Page 6 of 7

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 55 of 96



The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.80: NONCONFORMING STRUCTURES Page 7 of 7

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 56 of 96



CHAPTER 17.125: DEFINITIONS

Section

17.125.005    General provisions

17.125.010    Definitions

17.125.005 GENERAL PROVISIONS.

(A) The definitions listed in this section shall apply to the words and phrases used in MSB Title 17 unless

otherwise described within the individual chapters.

(1) Words used in the present tense shall include the future.

(2) Words in the singular number shall include the plural number and the plural number shall include the

singular.

(3) The word “shall” is mandatory.

(4) The words “include,” “including,” and “includes” shall be interpreted as being followed by the phrase

“but not limited to.”

(5) The word “lot” includes the words “plot” and “parcel.”

(B) In instances where a word is not included in this section nor in the applicable section, reference will be

made first to the most recent publication of “The Illustrated Book of Development Definitions” then to “The Zoning

Dictionary” by Lehman and Associates, then to “Webster’s New Universal, Unabridged Dictionary.”

(Ord. 05-125(SUB)(AM), § 2 (part), 2005)

17.125.010 DEFINITIONS.

• “Access” means a legal way or means of approach to provide physical ingress or egress to a property.

• “Accessory building” means a building detached from a principal building located on the same lot and

customarily incidental and subordinate to the principal building or use.

• “Accessory use” means a use or structure incidental and subordinate to the principal use or structure on a

parcel of land, is on the same parcel as the principal use or structure, and is a use or structure commonly

associated with the principal use or structure and integrally related to it. Some examples are: private garages or

storage sheds on residential property or barns on agricultural property.

• “Administrative permit” means a written document issued administratively which may specify controls,

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.125: DEFINITIONS Page 1 of 17

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 57 of 96



restrictions and safeguards on the administratively permitted activity to ensure compatibility with permitted uses.

•    “Adult bookstore” means a commercial establishment where at least 51 percent of its interior floor area or

retail merchandise is devoted to the sale, rent, lease, inspection, or viewing of books, films, video cassettes,

magazines, or other media or periodicals whose dominant theme is actual or simulated specified sexual

activities, display or exhibition of specified anatomical areas, removal of articles of clothing, or total nudity.

•    “Adult business” means any bookstore, adult cabaret, adult escort service, adult massage service, adult

mini-theater, or adult motion picture theatre.

•    “Adult cabaret” means a restaurant, coffee house, or cabaret which features topless dancers, strippers, male

or female impersonators, or similar entertainers who provide live adult entertainment for commercial purposes at

any time or any number of times.

•    “Adult entertainment” means any motion picture, live performance, display, or dance of any type whose

dominant theme is actual or simulated specified sexual activities, display or exhibition of specified anatomical

areas, removal of articles of clothing, or total nudity, whether live or by shadow effects, offered for commercial

purposes.

•    “Adult escort” means a person who, for monetary consideration such as a fee or tip, or for other non-

monetary consideration, agrees or offers to act as a companion, guide, or date that may provide services such

as modeling lingerie, adult entertainment, adult massage service, or similar activities.

•    “Adult escort service” means a person or business that, for monetary consideration such as a fee or tip, or

for other non-monetary consideration, furnishes or offers adult escorts.

•    “Adult massage service” means a person or business that, for monetary consideration such as a fee or tip, or

for other non-monetary consideration, furnishes or offers massages or related services, for which the service

providers do not have a license for the practice of that profession or vocation as regulated under Alaska Statute

Title 8, or which also provides adult entertainment.

•    “Adult mini-theater” means an enclosed building with a capacity of less than 50 persons used for the purpose

of displaying adult entertainment through films, video, or other motion pictures for commercial purposes.

•    “Adult motion picture theater” means an enclosed building with a capacity of 50 or more persons used for the

purpose of displaying adult entertainment through films, video, or other motion pictures for commercial purposes.

•    “Adverse impact” means a condition that creates, imposes, aggravates, or leads to inadequate, impractical,

unsafe, or unhealthy conditions on a site proposed for development or on other properties and facilities.

•    “Affordable housing” means housing renting for monthly rent of not more than 30 percent of the total monthly

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.125: DEFINITIONS Page 2 of 17

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 58 of 96



household income of low income households (defined to be household earnings less than 80 percent of the

median annual income adjusted for household size, as determined by the United States Housing and Urban

Development Department); or housing that may be purchased with monthly payments including: principal,

interest, taxes, insurance, homeowner association fees, and assessments that do not add up to more than 30

percent of the total monthly household income of low income households.

•    “Agricultural” means the production and harvest or care of plants, animals, birds, fish, bees, and other

organisms by humans for use in providing food, fuel, fiber, shelter, travel, clothing, energy, and aesthetics.

•    “Allowed use” means a use of land or a structure, which is permissible by right or condition within a certain

zoning district according to the regulations of this code.

•    “Amateur radio tower” means any tower used for amateur radio transmissions consistent with the “Complete

Federal Communications Commission U.S. Amateur Part 97 Rules and Regulations” for amateur radio facilities.

•    “Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA)” means a 1990 federal law designed to bring disabled Americans into

the economic mainstream by providing them equal access to jobs, transportation, public facilities, and services.

•    “Ancillary structure” means any form of development associated with a telecommunication facility, including

but not limited to: foundations, concrete slabs on grade, guy wires, guy anchors, generators, and transmission

cable supports; however, specifically excluding equipment cabinets.

•    “Angle of repose” means the steepest angle material can be piled without slumping.

•    “Antenna” means any apparatus designed for the transmitting or receiving of electromagnetic waves. Types

of antenna include, but are not limited to: omni-directional antennas, directional antennas, multi or single bay,

yagi, or parabolic antennas.

•    “Applicant” means a person or authorized representative submitting an application for development.

•    “Aquifer” means a formation, a group of formations, or part of a formation that contains sufficient saturated

permeable material to yield economical quantities of water to wells and springs.

•    “Batch plant” means a plant or equipment used for production of asphalt or concrete.

•    “Bedroom” means a private room planned and intended for sleeping, separated from other rooms by a door,

and accessible to a bathroom without crossing another bedroom.

•    “Berm” means an earthen mound designed to provide visual interest, screen undesirable views, decrease

noise, or control or manage surface drainage.

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.125: DEFINITIONS Page 3 of 17

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 59 of 96



•    “Bioswales” means open channels that usually possess a dense cover of grasses and other herbaceous

plants through which runoff is directed during storm events. Bioswales allow runoff to infiltrate.

•    “Breakpoint technology” means the engineering design of a tower wherein a specified point is designed to

have stresses concentrated so that the stress point is at least 5 percent more susceptible to failure than any

other point along the structure. In the event of a structural failure, the failure will occur at the breakpoint rather

than at the base plate, anchor bolts, or any other point on the tower.

•    “Broadcast facilities” means a tower, antennas, or antenna arrays for FM/TV/HDTV broadcasting

transmission facilities, and tower(s) utilized as antennas for an AM broadcast station that are licensed by the

Federal Communications Commission.

•    “Buffer” means a method of protection against negative impacts, which provides a physical separation or

barrier.

•    “Building” means any structure, including mobile homes, intended for the shelter, housing, or enclosure of

any person, animal, process, equipment, goods, use, materials, or services of any kind or nature.

•    “Cabin” means any residential building no greater than 800 square feet in gross floor area.

•    “Capture area” means the area on the surface of the ground where infiltrating water will travel to a drinking

water well.

•    “Caretaker” means a person(s) who takes care of land, dwellings, animals, or belongings when an owner is

absent.

•    “Certified site plan” means a site plan that is prepared and sealed by an architect, professional engineer or

land surveyor, authorized to engage in that profession by the state of Alaska. The certified site plan shall be at a

scale of one inch equals 50 feet (or less) showing dimensions and locations of all existing and proposed

development on the site in relationship to all property lines.

•    “Character” means those attributes, qualities, and features that make up and distinguish a development

project and give such project a sense of purpose, function, definition, and uniqueness.

•    “Circulation” means systems, buildings, and physical improvements for the movement of people, goods,

water, air, sewage, or power by such means as streets, highways, railways, waterways, and airways.

•    “Collocation” means the installation of antennas and associated equipment from more than one provider on a

single structure.

•    “Commencement of construction or placement” means the first placement of permanent construction of a

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.125: DEFINITIONS Page 4 of 17

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 60 of 96



building on a site, such as the pouring of a slab or footings, the installation of piles, the construction of columns,

or any work beyond the stage of excavation; or the placement of a building upon a foundation.

•    “Commercial use” means a land use, business enterprise, or vehicle maintained for the purpose of buying or

selling goods or services.

•    “Commission” means the Matanuska-Susitna Borough Planning Commission.

•    “Compatible design” means the visual relationship between adjacent and nearby buildings and the immediate

streetscape, in terms of a consistency of materials, colors, building height, building elements, building mass, and

other constructed elements of the urban environment, such that abrupt or severe differences are avoided.

•    “Conditional use” means a use of a structure or land, which may be allowed by the planning commission after

a public hearing and review and subject to certain prescribed or imposed conditions.

•    “Conditional use permit (CUP)” means a written document which may specify controls, restrictions and

safeguards on the conditional permitted activity to ensure compatibility with permitted uses.

•    “Conditions of approval” means requirements established by the borough before preliminary or final approval

of an application becomes effective.

•    “Confined aquifer” means an aquifer which is bounded above and below by formations of impermeable or

relatively impermeable material. An aquifer in which ground water is under significantly greater pressure than

atmospheric pressure and its upper limit is the bottom of a bed of distinctly lower hydraulic conductivity than that

of the aquifer itself. Confined aquifer is synonymous with artesian aquifer.

•    “Confining layer” means a geologic bed or layer that retards but does not necessarily prevent the flow of

water. A confining layer does not readily yield water to wells or springs. Confining layer is synonymous with

aquitard.

•    “Contiguous acres” includes acreage that may be separated by a highway or railroad.

•    “Deciduous” means plants that drop their foliage annually before becoming dormant.

•    “Density” means the number of dwelling units allowed per area of a development site or parcel.

•    “Design standards” means a set of regulations defining parameters to be followed in site and building design

and development.

•    “Designee” means the director or his/her duly authorized representative.

•    “Developer” means the legal or beneficial owner or owners of a lot or of any land included in a proposed

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.125: DEFINITIONS Page 5 of 17

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 61 of 96



development, including the holder of an option or contract to purchase or other persons having enforceable

proprietary interests in such lands.

•    “Development” means the construction, reconstruction, conversion, structural alteration, relocation,

placement, or enlargement of any building.

•    “Director” means the director of planning and land use.

•    “Dog mushing” means a transport method powered by one or more dogs for sport or paid service.

•    “Drainage plan” means a plan that is prepared and stamped by a civil engineer authorized to operate in the

state of Alaska, which contains the following:

(a)    background information:

(i)    project description;

(ii)    existing (predevelopment) conditions; and

(iii) proposed future (development) conditions.

•    “Duplex” means a structure containing two dwelling units, each of which has direct access to the outside.

•    “Dwelling unit” means one or more rooms, providing complete, independent living facilities for one or more

persons, including permanent provisions for living, sleeping, eating, cooking, and sanitation.

•    “Earth materials” includes those natural resources such as sand, rock, gravel, soil, peat moss, sphagnum,

stone, pumice, cinders and clay; also called “materials.”

•    “Earth materials processing” means any crushing, loading, screening, sorting, storing, washing, or production

of asphalt.

•    “Efficiency” means a one-room unit that serves as the occupant’s total living, sleeping, and eating space,

usually containing a separate bathroom.

•    “Egress” means an exit.

•    “Equipment compound” means the area occupied by a tower including areas inside or under the following: an

antenna-support structure’s framework, equipment cabinets, and ancillary structures.

•    “Evergreen” means vegetation that has foliage that persists and remains green throughout the year.

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.125: DEFINITIONS Page 6 of 17

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 62 of 96



•    “Extraction” means to take and remove earth materials from the subject site to an off-site location.

•    “Fair Housing Act of 1968” means that Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (Fair Housing Act), as

amended, which prohibits discrimination in the sale, rental, and financing of dwellings, and in other housing-

related transactions, based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, familial status, and handicap (disability).

•    “Feed lines” means cables used as the interconnecting media between the transmission or receiving

equipment and the antenna.

•    “Fence” means a manmade barrier of any material or combination of materials erected to enclose, screen, or

separate areas.

•    “Fence, solid” means a fence, including any gates, constructed of solid material, wood, or masonry, through

which no visual images may be seen.

•    “Fire service area” means a geographic region or area established by the borough to provide fire stations and

related facilities or services that are needed to protect the health, safety, or welfare of persons and property

within that area.

•    “Flag lot” means a lot with a long, narrow strip protruding from one side (pole) which fronts on a borough

standard width legal right-of-way and provides access to the lot.

•    “Garage” means an accessory building or portion of a main building primarily used for storage of motor

vehicles. A “garage” is distinguished from a “carport” in that a garage is enclosed on more than three sides, so

that the stored or parked car is contained entirely inside the building.

•    “Ground cover” means grasses or other low-growing plants and landscaping.

•    “Groundwater” means that part of the subsurface where water occurs in the saturated zone.

•    “Habitable” means a residence that is safe and can be occupied in reasonable comfort; the premises should

be closed in against the weather, provide running water, access to decent toilets and bathing facilities, heating,

and electricity. Particularly in multifamily developments, freedom from noxious smells, noise, and garbage are

expected.

•    “Heavy industrial” means the use of land, buildings, or structures for the manufacturing, processing,

fabricating, or assembly of raw materials, warehousing or bulk storage of goods, and related accessory uses.

•    “Height, building” means the height of a building, the vertical distance as measured from the base of the

building at finished grade to the highest point of the building including appurtenances. The average between the

highest and lowest grades within 20 feet of the building shall be considered finished grade and be used in

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.125: DEFINITIONS Page 7 of 17

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 63 of 96



calculating the height.

•    “Height, tall structure” means the vertical distance measured from finished grade to the highest point of the

tall structure, not including appurtenances, antennas, or equipment affixed thereto. In the case of wind energy

conversion systems, the blade is considered part of the overall height of the structure.

•    “Historical uses” means lands with sites, structures, landmarks, or objects with local, regional, statewide, or

national historical significance that have been used by past populations for historic or traditional uses (such as

subsistence activities, trail use, etc.) and that are often currently enjoyed by users.

•    “Impermeable” means a surface or material that provides a functional barrier to significant liquid flow or

infiltration.

•    “Impervious area/surface” means the area of the subject site covered by impenetrable materials. This

surface has been compacted or covered with a layer of material so that it is highly resistant to infiltration by

water.

•    “Incentive points” means numerical points that are provided to applicants that exceed the required minimum

design standards.

•    “Industrial use” means any activity which includes manufacturing, processing, warehousing, storage,

distribution, shipping, or other related uses.

•    “Ingress” means access or entry.

•    “Isochron” means a line drawn on a map through all points having the same numerical value of time.

•    “Junkyard/refuse area” means a location which is commercially used for the purpose of the outdoor storage,

handling, dismantling, wrecking, keeping or sale of used, discarded, wrecked or abandoned airplanes,

appliances, vehicles, boats, building and building materials, machinery, equipment, or parts thereof, including,

but not limited to, scrap metals, wood, lumber, plastic, fiber, or other tangible materials.

•    “Landfill” means an area in which solid waste is disposed of on or into the land, or that portion of a facility

where landfilling is taking or has taken place. “Landfill” does not include a landspreading facility or a containment

structure used for the disposal of drilling wastes.

•    “Landscape plan” means a plan, drawn to scale, showing proposed location and type of existing vegetation to

be retained, and proposed new vegetation. The landscape plan may be a component of the certified site plan.

Landscape plans shall also include:

(a)    proposed grade changes;

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.125: DEFINITIONS Page 8 of 17

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 64 of 96



(b) proposed buffers; and

(c) proposed screening devices.

• “Landscaping” means any of the following or combination of material such as, but not limited to, grass,

natural ground cover, shrubs, flowers, vines, hedges, trees, indigenous plant materials, planters, brick, stone or

natural forms, water forms, but not including the use of smooth concrete or asphalt.

• “Large-scale commercial” means a commercial building whose total gross building area, including outdoor

display and sales area, is equal to or exceeds 25,000 square feet. Large-scale commercial does not include

agricultural uses or activities.

• “Legal trail” means a trail that has been legally dedicated for public use either in fee simple or as a public use

easement as a trail. The trail has an existing right-of-way or formal, written and recorded landowner permission

allowing public access along its entire length.

• “Livable space” means the square footage of habitable or living areas in a building intended for occupancy by

one or more persons for living or sleeping quarters.

• “Livestock” means outdoor animals (i.e., cows, goats, horses, pigs, sled dogs, barnyard fowl, etc.) kept for

the purpose of providing food, clothing, work or recreation.

• “Living area” means an area or room(s) in a building designed for occupancy by one or more persons for

living or sleeping quarters.

• “Lot” means the least fractional part of subdivided lands having limited fixed boundaries and having an

assigned number, or other name through which it may be identified.

• “Lot area” means the total horizontal area within the lot lines of a lot, but does not include the pole area of a

flag lot and excludes any street rights-of-way.

• “Maintenance” means the servicing, repairing, or altering of any premises, appliance, apparatus, or

equipment to perpetuate the use or purpose for which such premises, appliance, apparatus, or equipment was

originally intended.

• “Mixed use development” means the development of a neighborhood, tract of land, building with a variety of

complementary and integrated uses, such as, but not limited to, residential, office, neighborhood commercial,

retail, public, recreation, in a compact urban form.

• “Monitoring well” means any cased excavation or opening into the ground made by digging, boring, drilling,

driving, jetting or other methods for the purpose of determining the physical, chemical, biological, or radiological

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.125: DEFINITIONS Page 9 of 17

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 65 of 96



properties of groundwater.

•    “Multifamily” means any development that exceeds the density thresholds within MSB 17.73.040(A).

•    “Natural features” means, but is not limited to, floodplains and surface drainage channels, stream corridors,

wetlands and riparian habitat, wildlife and scenic corridors, and other bodies of water, steep slopes, prominent

ridges, bluffs, or valleys, and existing trees and vegetation.

•    “Natural grade” means the elevation of the ground level in its natural state, before construction, filling, or

excavation.

•    “Neighborhood” means an area of a community with characteristics that distinguish it from other areas and

that may include distinct social or economic characteristics, housing types, schools, or boundaries defined by

physical barriers such as major highways, and railroads, or natural features such as water bodies or topography.

•    “Neighborhood commercial use(s)” means mixed use establishments primarily engaged in the provision of

frequently or recurrently needed goods for household consumption, such as prepackaged food and beverages

and limited household supplies and hardware. Typical commercial uses include neighborhood convenience

stores, laundromats, dry cleaners, small neighborhood offices, postal services, and gas stations.

•    “Occupied” means the presence of an individual or individuals in a structure or on a parcel of land or

contiguous parcels.

•    “Operator or manager” means any natural person responsible for the actual operation and management of an

adult business.

•    “Ownership interest” in any unincorporated business, means any interest in real or personal property used in

connection with the business, coupled with any degree of exercise of management, supervision, direction, or

control of the business. In any incorporated business, the term “ownership interest” means ownership of any

stock of the corporation.

•    “Parcel” means a lot or contiguous group of lots in single ownership or under single control, usually

considered a unit for purposes of development.

•    “Parking area/lot” means any public or private area, under or outside a building, designed and used for

parking motor vehicles, including parking lots, garages, private driveways, and legally designated areas of public

streets.

•    “Path/pathway” means a cleared way for pedestrians or bicycles that may or may not be improved.

•    “Pedestrian walkway” means a walkway or tunnel located at, above, or below grade level that is used as a

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.125: DEFINITIONS Page 10 of 17

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 66 of 96



means of travel by persons.

•    “Permit” means written governmental permission issued by an authorized official, empowering the holder

thereof to do some act not forbidden by law but not allowed without such authorization.

•    “Pervious hard surface” means any material that permits full or partial absorption of storm water into a

previously unimproved land.

•    “Phase” means a portion of an operation undertaken in a logical time and geographical sequence.

•    “Pollution” means the contamination or other degradation of the physical, chemical or biological properties of

water or air, including change in temperature, taste, color, turbidity or odor, or such discharge of any liquid,

gaseous, solid, radioactive or other substance into water or air as will or is likely to create a nuisance or render

such water or air harmful, detrimental or injurious to public health, safety or welfare, or to domestic, commercial,

industrial, agricultural, recreational or other beneficial uses, or to livestock, wild animals, birds, fish or other

aquatic life.

•    “Primary vehicle access” means, in the context of multifamily development, a vehicle access to the

development that is, at a minimum, characterized by the following elements: (1) full-turn vehicle access (i.e.,

turns allowed in all directions); (2) entryway signage with name of development and address; and (3) principal

entry for prospective owners or renters. All public and private roads must meet design standards as outlined in

the borough’s subdivision construction manual and addressing/street naming requirements as designated by the

borough’s geographic information systems department.

•    “Principal use” means the primary or predominant use of any lot, building, or structure.

•    “Property” means a lot, parcel, or tract of land together with the building located thereon.

•    “Public land” means land owned, maintained, or managed by a public agency.

•    “Qualified professional” means a professional hydrologist, geologist, or registered engineer that has specific

education and experience with groundwater hydrology.

•    “Recreational uses” means the pursuit of leisure-time activities such as, but not limited to, boating, dog

mushing, fishing, hunting, trapping, swimming, motorized and nonmotorized activities, sports, games of skill,

hiking, skiing, etc., and may include the enjoyment of natural beauty, historic landmarks, or wildlife.

•    “Reserved trail” means a trail that has been legally dedicated for public use either in fee simple or as a public

use easement as a trail. The trail has an existing right-of-way or formal, written and recorded landowner

permission allowing public access along its entire length.

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.125: DEFINITIONS Page 11 of 17

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 67 of 96



•    “Responsible party” means the landowner or the land owner’s designated agent.

•    “Residential use” means the use of land, buildings or structures for human habitation.

•    “Right-of-way” means a strip of land reserved or dedicated, used or to be used for a street, alley, walkway,

trail, airport, or circulation related purpose.

•    “Road” means a public or private way that provides access to property for vehicles or pedestrians.

•    “Runoff” means the portion of rainfall, melted snow, irrigation water, and any other liquids that flows across

the ground surface.

•    “Scenic views” means scenic, natural views that may be of significant natural beauty, farmlands, mountains,

or other scenes. The goal of development should be to preserve unique vistas and scenic corridors to the

greatest extent possible.

•    “Screening” means a method of visually shielding or buffering one abutting or nearby building or use from

another by fencing, walls, berms, or densely planted vegetation.

•    “Seasonal high water table” means the highest level to which the groundwater rises in most years. Estimates

are based on observations of the water table at selected sites and on the evidence of a saturated zone, the

upper limit often consisting of a mixture of grayish and reddish mottles in the soil.

•    “Setback” means the distance between a structure or activity and any lot line, right-of-way, or easement and

also the minimum distance required to be maintained between two structures or between a structure and

property line, right-of-way, water well, or water body. The distance shall be calculated in a straight line, without

regard to intervening structures or objects to the closest exterior point of the structure, property line, or shore

line, or center of the well.

•    “Short-term transient accommodation” means accommodations for compensation in a building or portions of

a building consisting of a residency of any period less than 60 days. If residency exceeds 59 consecutive days,

it cannot be considered a short-term transient accommodation for the purposes of this title.

•    “Sidewalk” means a paved, surfaced, or leveled area, paralleling and usually separated from the traveled

way, used as a pedestrian walk.

•    “Single-family dwelling” means a building containing one dwelling unit.

•    “Site” means any plot or parcel of land or combination of contiguous lots or parcels of land.

•    “Slope” means the rate of vertical change of ground surface expressed as a percentage figure and

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.125: DEFINITIONS Page 12 of 17

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 68 of 96



determined by dividing the vertical distance by the horizontal distance.

•    “Solid waste” means drilling wastes, garbage, refuse, sludge, building material, or other discarded material,

including solid, liquid, semi-solid, or contained gaseous material resulting from industrial, commercial, or

agricultural operations, or from community activities. For purposes of this chapter, “solid waste” does not

include:

(a)    spoil and overburden from road construction, land clearing, or mining operations;

(b)    mining waste regulated by federal and state regulations;

(c)    domestic sewage and other wastes that are discharged into and pass through a sewer system to a

publicly owned treatment works;

(d)    industrial or mining wastes that are being collected, stored, or treated in:

(i)    a wastewater treatment plant before discharge or removal; or

(ii)    an industrial processing facility for continual re-use;

(e)    industrial discharges that are point sources subject to federal or state permits;

(f)    nuclear or nuclear byproduct material.

•    “Specified anatomical areas” means:

(a)    less than completely and opaquely covered human genitals, pubic region, buttocks, and female breast

below a point immediately above the top of the areola; and

(b)    human male genitals in a discernibly turgid state, even if opaquely covered.

•    “Specified sexual activities” means simulated or actual:

(a)    display of human genitals in a state of sexual stimulation or arousal;

(b)    acts of masturbation, sexual inter-course, sodomy, bestiality, necrophilia, sado-masochistic abuse,

fellatio, or cunnilingus; and

(c)    fondling or erotic touching of human genitals, pubic region, buttocks, or female breasts.

•    “Standards” means mandatory regulations, which are indicated by use of the terms “will,” “shall” and “must.”

•    “Steep slopes” means any portion of a development site where the natural grade of the land has a slope of 40

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.125: DEFINITIONS Page 13 of 17

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 69 of 96



•    “Steep slopes” means any portion of a development site where the natural grade of the land has a slope of 40

percent or greater.

•    “Stream” means a body of flowing water, where the water flows in a natural channel as opposed to a canal.

•    “Stream corridor” means the corridor defined by the top of the stream’s channel bank, plus the adjacent land

areas that contain vegetation, habitats, and ecosystems associated with bodies of water or dependent on the

flow of water in the stream. Biologists often refer to the adjacent land area, which will vary in width depending on

the particular stream, as a “riparian ecosystem.” In braided channels, the stream corridor shall include the entire

stream feature.

•    “Street” means any vehicular way that is (1) an existing state, municipal, or borough roadway; (2) shown

upon a plat approved pursuant to law; (3) approved by other official action; (4) shown on a plat duly filed and

recorded in the office of the recording clerk; (5) shown on the official map or adopted master plan. It includes the

land between the street lines, whether improved or unimproved.

•    “Structure” means anything that is constructed or created and located on or under the ground, or attached to

something fixed to the ground. For purposes of minimum setbacks and building separation requirements, the

following are not considered structures unless specifically addressed by code: fences; retaining walls; parking

areas; roads, driveways, or walkways; window awnings; a temporary building when used for 30 days or less;

utility poles and lines; guy wires; clotheslines; flagpoles; planters; incidental yard furnishings; water wells;

monitoring wells; and/or tubes, patios, decks, or steps less than 18 inches above average grade.

•    “Structure, rail dependent” means a structure with a primary function requiring close proximity to railroad

tracks.

•    “Subdivider” means any person having an ownership interest in the land that is the subject of an application

for development.

•    “Subdivision” means the division of a tract or parcel of land into two or more lots, sites, or other divisions, or

the combining of two or more lots, tracts, or parcels into one lot, tract, or parcel for the purpose, whether

immediate or future, of sale or lease for more than ten years, including any resubdivision.

•    “Subject site” means the property subject to the interim materials district; conditional use permit; or

administrative permit for earth materials extraction activities.

•    “Swale” means a low-lying or depressed land area commonly wet or moist, which can function as an

intermittent drainageway.

•    “Tall structure” means a structure that is over 85 feet above grade. The term includes, but is not limited to,

tethered balloons, flag poles, sculpture, buildings, elevators, storage or processing facilities, water tanks,

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.125: DEFINITIONS Page 14 of 17

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 70 of 96



derricks, cranes, signs, chimneys, area illumination poles, towers, broadcast facilities, and supports for

communication.

•    “Telecommunication facility” means any unmanned facility established for the purpose of providing wireless

transmission of voice, data, images, or other information including, but not limited to, cellular telephone service,

personal communications service, paging service, and television or radio communications. Telecommunication

facilities may include one or more towers, antennas, equipment cabinets, feed lines, ancillary structures, and

fencing.

•    “Telecommunication tower” means a tower built for the sole or primary purpose of supporting any FCC

licensed or authorized antennas and their associated facilities, including structures that are constructed for

wireless communications services including, but not limited to, private, broadcast, and public safety services, as

well as unlicensed wireless services and fixed wireless services such as microwave backhaul.

•    “Topographic features” means the physical land surface relief including terrain elevation and slope.

•    “Tower” means a vertical projection composed of metal or other material designed for the purpose of

accommodating antennas, wind turbine equipment, or other equipment at a desired height or utilization as a

broadcast facility. Examples of tower types include guyed, lattice, monopole, concealed, and other similar type

facilities. Towers do not include any device used to attach antennas to an existing building, unless the device

extends above the highest point of the building by more than 20 feet.

•    “Traditional uses” means an inherited, established, or customary pattern of land uses that may involve a

cultural, historical practice, or a social custom.

•    “Trail” means a traveled way which may have recreational, aesthetic, alternative transportation, or

educational opportunities.

•    “Transmission equipment” means equipment that facilitates transmission for any FCC licensed or authorized

wireless communication service, including, but not limited to, radio transceivers, antennas, coaxial or fiber-optic

cable, and regular backup power supply.

•    “Unbuildable” means an area or land that cannot be used practically or is not feasible for a habitable building

because of natural conditions, such as a slope exceeding 40 percent, wetlands, floodplains, streams, ponds, or

other impeding conditions.

•    “Unconfined aquifer” means an aquifer whose upper surface is a water table free to fluctuate.

•    “Undeveloped land” means land in its natural state before commencement of construction or placement of

any building.

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.125: DEFINITIONS Page 15 of 17

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 71 of 96



• “Use” means the purpose for which land, a building, or structure is arranged, designated, or intended, is

occupied or maintained.

• “Useable open space” means land within or related to a development that is designed and intended for the

common use or enjoyment of the residents of the development and may include complementary buildings and

improvements as are necessary and appropriate.

• “Variance” means specific grant of relief from one or more of the requirements of this title as provided in

MSB 17.65.

• “Water bodies” means permanent or temporary areas of standing or flowing water. Water depth is such that

water, and not air, is the principal medium in which organisms live. Water bodies include, but are not limited to:

lakes, ponds, streams, rivers, sloughs, and all salt water bodies.

• “Water table” means the upper surface of a zone of saturated soil, including natural seasonal fluctuations, but

excluding fluctuations caused by heavy rains or rapid snowmelt; the water table is indicated by the level at which

water stands in a well that is open along its length and penetrates the surficial deposits just deeply enough to

encounter standing water in the bottom.

• “Wetlands” means those areas that are inundated and saturated by surface or groundwater at a frequency

and duration sufficient to support, and that under normal circumstances do support, a prevalence of vegetation

typically adapted for life in saturated soil conditions, including swamps, marshes, bogs, and similar areas.

• “Width of a structure” means the horizontal distance measured from the outermost points of the structure

including attachments and structural supports but excluding guy wires and transmission lines strung between

towers as in the case of electrical power lines.

• “Wind energy conversion system (WECS)” means any device such as a wind charger, windmill, turbine,

energy ball, wind tower, or another similar device, which is typically mounted to a tower or pole, and its

associated mechanical and electrical equipment, which is designed to convert wind energy to a form of usable

energy.

• “Yard” means an open space that lies between the principal building or buildings and the nearest lot line.

• “Yard, front” means a space extending across the full width of the lot between the principal building and the

front lot line and measured perpendicular to the building to the closest point of the front lot line.

• “Yard, rear” means a space extending across the full width of the lot between the principal building and the

rear lot line and measured perpendicular to the building to the closest point of the rear lot line.

• “Yard, required” means the minimum open space between a lot line and the yard line within which no building

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.125: DEFINITIONS Page 16 of 17

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 72 of 96



is permitted to be located except as provided by the design standards.

• “Yard, side” means a space extending from the front yard to the rear yard between the principal building and

the side lot line and measured perpendicular from the side lot line to the closest point of the principal building.

(Ord. 18-030, § 8, 2018; Ord. 18-013, § 6, 2018; Ord. 17-096, § 5, 2017; Ord. 15-016, § 3, 2015; Ord. 12-169,

§ 4, 2013; Ord. 12-064, § 3, 2012; Ord. 11-159, § 3, 2011; Ord. 11-153, § 18, 2011; Ord. 11-146, § 8, 2011;

Ord. 11-074, § 5, 2011; Ord. 11-019, § 3, 2011; Ord. 09-014, § 3, 2009; Ord. 08-161(AM), § 3, 2008; Ord. 08-

136, § 3, 2008; Ord. 08-018(SUB), § 18, 2008; Ord. 08-017(AM), § 3, 2008; Ord. 07-058, § 12, 2007; Ord. 06-

192(AM), § 3, 2007; Ord. 06-188(SUB), § 3, 2007; Ord. 05-182(AM), § 9, 2005; Ord. 05-125(SUB)(AM), § 2

(part), 2005)

The Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code is current through Ordinance 25-045, passed April 1, 2025.

Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code CHAPTER 17.125: DEFINITIONS Page 17 of 17

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 73 of 96



CODE ORDINANCE  
Sponsored by: Hale 

Introduced:
Public Hearing:

Action:

MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH 
ORDINANCE SERIAL NO. 25-073 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH ASSEMBLY AMENDING 
MSB 17.02 MANDATORY LAND USE PERMIT, MSB 17.55 – SETBACK AND 
SCREENING EASEMENTS, MSB 17.65 VARIANCES, MSB 17.80 NONCONFORMING 
STRUCTURES AND MSB 17.125 DEFINITIONS.  

BE IT ENACTED: 

WHEREAS, the intent and rationale of this ordinance are found 

in the accompanying Information Memorandum No. 25-126. 

Section 1. Classification. This ordinance is of a general and 

permanent nature and shall become a part of the Borough Code. 

Section 2. Amendment of chapter. The title and table of 

contents within MSB 17.55 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

CHAPTER 17.55: SETBACKS [AND SCREENING EASEMENTS] 

Section 

17.55.004    DEFINITIONS 
17.55.005    [GENERAL] PURPOSE AND INTENT 
17.55.010    SETBACKS FROM RIGHTS-OF-WAY AND LOT LINES 
17.55.015    SHORELANDS; DEFINITION [REPEALED] 
17.55.016    WATER BODY SETBACKS FOR POLLUTION SOURCES 
17.55.020    WATER BODY SETBACKS FOR [SHORELANDS] STRUCTURES 
17.55.040    VIOLATIONS, ENFORCEMENT, AND PENALTIES 

Section 3. Amendment of Subsection. MSB 17.55.004(A) is 

hereby amended as follows: 

17.55.004 DEFINITIONS. 

(A) For the purpose of this chapter, the following

DRAFT

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 74 of 96



definitions shall apply unless the context clearly 

indicates or requires a different meaning. 

• “Animal waste facility” means any area or

structure used to store, compost, or dispose of animal 

manure, animal byproducts, an animal carcass, or fish 

waste.  The term does not include a dumpster or other 

closed container provided by a waste service provider. 

• “Hazardous substance” means (A) an element or

compound that, when it enters into or on the surface or 

subsurface land or water of the state, presents a danger 

to the public health or welfare, or to fish, animals, 

vegetation, or any part of the natural habitat in which 

fish, animals, or wildlife may be found; or (B) a 

substance defined as a hazardous substance under 42 

U.S.C. §§ 9601 — 9657 (Comprehensive Environmental 

Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980).  

• “Ordinary high water mark” means the mark made by

the action of water under natural conditions on the shore 

or bank of a water body [BODY OF WATER] which action has 

been so common and usual that it has created a difference 

between the character of the vegetation or soil on one 

side of the mark and character of the vegetation and 

soil on the other side of the mark. 

• “Private pond” means a natural or constructed

DRAFT

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 75 of 96



water body less than five acres in size that lacks a 

surface connection to other waterbodies and is located 

entirely on property with the same ownership. 

• “Pump activated fuel delivery systems” means

those fuel tanks, such as for home heating oil or 

aviation fuel, where the tank outlet is located above 

the fluid level of a full tank. 

• “Secondary containment” means an impermeable

diked area or portable impermeable container capable of 

providing storage capacity for materials which may leak 

due to the failure, overfilling or improper draining of 

the primary storage container. Double-walled tanks 

qualify as secondary containment only where the flow 

piping includes leak detection coupled to an automatic 

shutoff valve at the tank outlet. 

• “Water-dependent accessory structure” means a

structure necessary to support access to or use of the 

water (e.g., a shed used to store boating accessories) 

or waterfront (e.g., a gazebo). 

Section 4. Amendment of Section. MSB 17.55.005 is hereby 

amended as follows: 

17.55.005 [GENERAL] PURPOSE AND INTENT. 

(A) [THIS] The purpose of this chapter is to

establish[ES] minimum structural setbacks from lot 

DRAFT

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 76 of 96



lines, [WATER COURSES AND] water bodies, and rights-of-

way [, AND SPECIFIC SCREENING EASEMENTS FOR CERTAIN 

LANDS WITHIN SUBDIVISIONS] in the Matanuska-Susitna 

Borough except where otherwise specified in special land 

use district regulations within this title. 

(1) Setbacks provide for light and air, fire

protection, traffic safety, preservation of privacy, 

stormwater management, space for utility lines, and 

uphold neighborhood aesthetics; and 

(2) Setbacks along flowing waters minimize

risks to structures from lateral channel migration and 

flooding. 

(B) The primary purpose of 17.55.016 to 17.55.020

is to protect human health, aquatic and riparian 

habitat, the ecologic function of water bodies, the 

local economy and property values, recreation, viewshed, 

and quality of life. 

(1) These sections establish requirements

related to the development and management of lands 

adjoining waterbodies. 

(2) Standards will reduce and minimize the

discharge of pollutants to waterbodies via surface 

runoff and subsurface leaching. 

Section 5. Amendment of Section. MSB 17.55.010 is hereby 

DRAFT

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 77 of 96



amended as follows: 

17.55.010 SETBACKS FROM RIGHTS-OF-WAY AND LOT LINES. 

(A) No structure or building line shall be placed 

within 25 feet from the right-of-way line of any public 

right-of-way, except no furthermost protruding portion 

of any structure shall be placed within ten feet from 

the right-of-way line of any public right-of-way when 

the pre-existing lot: 

(1) measures 60 feet or less in frontage on a 

public right-of-way, and is not located on a cul-de-sac 

bulb; or 

(2) comprises a nonconforming structure 

erected prior to July 3, 1973. This setback shall be 

known as the structure or building line setback. 

(B) Except where specifically provided other[-]wise 

by ordinance, no furthermost protruding portion of any 

structure or building line shall be located nearer than 

ten feet from any side or rear lot line. 

(C) Except as otherwise specified by code, eaves 

may project a maximum of three feet into required setback 

areas. 

(D) The setback requirements of this section do not 

apply to property within the cities of Houston, Palmer, 

and Wasilla. 

DRAFT

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 78 of 96



(E) If a condemnation by a governmental agency 

reduces the building line setback of a structure below 

25 feet, but there remains at least ten feet setback, 

and the setback reduced by the condemnation met the 

requirements of this section prior to the condemnation, 

the resulting setback shall be the setback requirements 

for the lot. 

(F) For purposes of this chapter, commercial or 

industrial buildings on separate but [ADJACENT] 

adjoining parcels, which otherwise meet the setback 

requirements, may have connecting pedestrian walkways, 

enclosed or not. Pedestrian walkways: 

(1) shall not contribute to the building area 

or the number of stories or height of connected 

buildings; and 

(2) must comply with the current adopted 

edition of the International Building Code, except that 

the outside width of the walkway shall not exceed 30 

feet in width, exclusive of eaves. 

(G) No furthermost protruding portion of any 

structure or building line shall be located nearer than 

ten feet from railroad rights-of-way, except that 

utilities and rail dependent structures may extend up to 

railroad rights-of-way. 

DRAFT

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 79 of 96



Section 6. Adoption of Section. MSB 17.55.016 is hereby 

adopted as follows: 

17.55.016 WATER BODY SETBACKS FOR POLLUTION SOURCES 

(A) No part of a subsurface sewage disposal system 

shall be closer than 100 feet from the ordinary high 

water mark of any water body. 

(B)  Kennels, stables, animal yards and animal 

waste facilities shall not be located closer than 100 

feet from the ordinary high water mark of any water body. 

Drainage from kennels, stables, animal yards and animal 

waste facilities shall not be concentrated and directed 

(e.g., such as by a ditch) towards a water body. This 

requirement does not apply to private ponds. 

(C) Paved vehicle parking areas shall not be 

located closer than 25 feet from the ordinary high water 

mark of any water body.  

(1) for commercial or industrial facilities, 

paved vehicle parking areas within 75 feet of a water 

body shall demonstrate that the development standards 

identified in MSB 17.02.035(B) regarding stormwater 

runoff are met. 

(D)  Except as provided in subparagraph (1), all 

liquid hazardous substances, including petroleum fuels, 

oils, and lubricants, located or stored closer than 75 

DRAFT

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 80 of 96



feet from the ordinary high water mark of any water body 

shall include secondary containment of at least 110 

percent of the storage volume to minimize the risk of 

spills. All piping and valves carrying liquid hazardous 

substances shall have secondary containment. 

(1) Pump-activated fuel-delivery systems

with leak detection and auto shutoff may have a drip 

collection system instead of secondary containment. 

(2) Refined oil fuels such as gasoline, diesel

fuel, small engine fuels, etc., with an aggregate total 

volume of 10 gallons or less do not require secondary 

containment. 

(3) The owners of pre-existing fixed storage

facilities for petroleum fuels and other liquid 

hazardous substances (e.g., home heating oil tanks) 

shall be allowed five years from the effective date of 

this section to fully comply with the secondary 

containment requirement. 

(E) The following activities are prohibited within

25 feet of the ordinary high water mark of any water 

body:  

(1) Removing riparian buffer from more than

50 percent of the surface area except as provided in MSB 

17.02.035(A)(1)(a).  

DRAFT

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 81 of 96



(a) Dead, diseased, or fallen trees may 

be removed from the riparian buffer area, and pruning 

for vegetation health is allowed. 

(2) Ground disturbing activities of more than 

50 percent of the surface area.  

(3) Storing or discharging solid waste, 

including debris, and animal and yard wastes. 

(4) Stockpiling snow imported from an offsite 

location. 

(5) The application of fertilizers or 

herbicides.  

Section 7. Amendment of Section. MSB 17.55.020 is hereby 

amended as follows: 

17.55.020 WATER BODY SETBACKS FOR [SHORELANDS] 

STRUCTURES. 

(A) Except as provided in subsections (B) and (F) 

of this section, no structure or footing shall be located 

closer than 75 feet from the ordinary high water mark of 

a water body [BODY OF WATER]. [EXCEPT AS PROVIDED 

OTHERWISE, E]Eaves may project three feet into the 

required setback area. 

(1) Compliance with setbacks for structures 

adjoining waterbodies shall be based upon the location 

of the structure in relation to the ordinary high water 

DRAFT

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 82 of 96



mark at the time it was constructed. Subsequent movement 

of the ordinary high water mark that reduces the setback 

distance does not create a violation under this chapter. 

(B) Docks, piers, marinas, aircraft hangars, 

boathouses and water-dependent accessory structures may 

be located closer than 75 feet of a water body and over 

the water body, provided they [ARE NOT USED FOR 

HABITATION AND DO NOT CONTAIN SANITARY OR PETROLEUM FUEL 

STORAGE FACILITIES. STRUCTURES PERMITTED OVER WATER 

UNDER THIS SUBSECTION SHALL CONFORM TO ALL APPLICABLE 

STATE AND FEDERAL STATUTES AND REGULATIONS] meet all 

borough regulatory standards and receive a land use 

permit prior to construction in accordance with MSB 

17.02. 

(1) Boathouses or aircraft hangars which are 

exempt from a minimum shoreline setback for structures 

shall: 

(a) be built over, in, or [IMMEDIATELY 

ADJACENT TO] adjoining a water_body and used solely for 

storing boats and boating accessories; 

(b) be designed, constructed and oriented 

for primary access by boats or aircraft directly to a 

water_body; 

(c) not have more than incidental 

DRAFT

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 83 of 96



accessory access to a street or driveway; and 

(d) not be usable as a garage or 

habitable structure without significant alteration. 

[(C) IN THE CITY OF WASILLA, THIS SECTION DOES NOT 

APPLY TO STRUCTURES WHERE CONSTRUCTION WAS COMPLETED 

PRIOR TO NOVEMBER 16, 1982. ELSEWHERE IN THE BOROUGH, 

THIS SECTION DOES NOT APPLY TO STRUCTURES WHERE 

CONSTRUCTION WAS COMPLETED PRIOR TO JANUARY 1, 1987, IF 

THE PRESENT OWNER OR OWNERS OF THE PROPERTY HAD NO 

PERSONAL KNOWLEDGE OF ANY VIOLATION OF THE REQUIREMENTS 

OF THIS SECTION PRIOR TO SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION OF THE 

STRUCTURES. THE DIRECTOR OF THE PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

SHALL, UPON APPLICATION BY A PROPERTY OWNER, DETERMINE 

WHETHER A PROPERTY QUALIFIES FOR AN EXCEPTION UNDER THIS 

SUBSECTION. 

(1) AN APPLICATION FOR A SHORELINE SETBACK 

EXCEPTION SHALL INCLUDE A FILING FEE AS ESTABLISHED BY 

RESOLUTION OF THE ASSEMBLY. 

(D) IN THIS SECTION, A “STRUCTURE” IS ANY DWELLING 

OR HABITABLE BUILDING OR GARAGE. 

(E) NO PART OF A SUBSURFACE SEWAGE DISPOSAL SYSTEM 

SHALL BE CLOSER THAN 100 FEET FROM THE ORDINARY HIGH 

WATER MARK OF ANY BODY OF WATER. THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

SHALL REQUIRE THIS DISTANCE BE INCREASED WHERE NECESSARY 

DRAFT

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 84 of 96



TO PROTECT WATERS WITHIN THE BOROUGH.] 

(F)  A permit in accordance with MSB 17.02 is 

required prior to construction or placement of any 

structure, or any ground-disturbing activity within 75 

feet of the ordinary high water mark of any water body. 

(1) New structures may be located between 45 

and 75 feet from the ordinary high water mark of a lake, 

pond, or wetland provided a land use permit in accordance 

with MSB 17.02 is obtained prior to commencement of 

construction. 

(2) Existing habitable buildings and garages 

built between May 12, 1987, and the effective date of 

this paragraph that are between 45 and 75 feet of the 

ordinary high water mark of a lake, pond, or wetland may 

obtain a land use permit in accordance with MSB 17.02 to 

comply with this chapter.  

Section 8. Amendment of Subsection. MSB 17.02.010(A) is 

hereby amended as follows: 

(A) It is the intent of this chapter to improve the 

level of compliance with existing borough code by 

establishing a mandatory land use review process for 

activities within 75 feet of a water body and directly 

providing regulatory information to persons proposing 

[DEVELOPMENT] certain activities within the borough 

DRAFT

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 85 of 96



outside of the cities of Houston, Palmer, and Wasilla. 

Section 9. Amendment of Section. MSB 17.02.020 is hereby 

amended as follows: 

17.02.020 LAND USE PERMIT FOR ACTIVITIES WITHIN 75 

FEET OF A WATER BODY. 

(A) The land owner or authorized agent shall obtain

a land use permit from the Matanuska-Susitna Borough 

Planning Department prior to the commencement of: 

(6) construction or placement of any

[BUILDING] structure within 75 feet of the ordinary high 

water mark of any [WATERCOURSE OR] water body; or 

(7) ground disturbing activities within 75

feet of the ordinary high water mark of any water body. 

(B) A landowner or authorized agent may voluntarily

request a land use permit for any structure or use not 

required to obtain a permit under this chapter. 

(C) A permit is not required under this chapter

when the proposed use is subject to another permit within 

this title. 

Section 10. Amendment of Subsection. MSB 17.02.030(B)(2)(a) 

is hereby amended as follows: 

(a) site plans are not required to be certified

but shall clearly identify the following: 

(i) north arrow;

DRAFT

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 86 of 96



(ii) boundaries of parcel; 

(iii) size, location, and setback dimensions 

of proposed structures; 

(iv) names and location of [ADJACENT] 

adjoining roadways; 

(v) location of rights-of-way and public 

easements within and [ADJACENT TO] adjoining the parcel; 

(vi) location and name of [ADJACENT] adjoining 

water bodies; 

(vii) location of subsurface sewage disposal 

systems; [AND] 

(viii) intended use of proposed structures;[.] 

(ix) existing cleared areas, structures, and 

impervious surfaces; and 

(x) any areas of proposed ground disturbing 

activities. 

Section 11. Adoption of Section. MSB 17.02.035 REQUIRED 

STANDARDS is adopted as follows: 

17.02.035 REQUIRED STANDARDS 

(A) The director may issue a land use permit 

pursuant to MSB 17.02.020 only upon finding that the 

development meets the following standards: 

(1) the site plan demonstrates compliance with 

the provisions of MSB 17.55.016; 

DRAFT

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 87 of 96



(a) notwithstanding the requirements of

17.55.016(E)(1), a land use permit may be issued where 

no riparian buffer exists if the requirements of MSB 

17.02.050 are met. 

(2) any proposed buildings or structures shall

comply with MSB 17.55.020(B), as applicable; and 

(3) the total area of impervious surfaces

within 75 feet of a water body shall not exceed 20% of 

the area within 75 feet of the water body. 

Section 12. Adoption of Section. MSB 17.02.050 ADDITIONAL 

REQUIRED STANDARDS FOR SPECIFIC CIRCUMSTANCES is adopted as 

follows: 

17.02.050 ADDITIONAL REQUIRED STANDARDS FOR 

SPECIFIC CIRCUMSTANCES 

(A) In addition to the site plan requirements

identified in MSB 17.02.030, structures built between 45 

and 75 feet as required by MSB 17.55.020(F)(1)-(2), or 

a land use permit application in accordance with MSB 

17.02.035(A)(1)(a) or 17.02.035(A)(3), must submit the 

following additional information to obtain a land use 

permit: 

(1) existing and proposed drainage patterns to

and from the parcel, known drainage problems such as 

flooding or erosion, and potential pollutant sources 

DRAFT

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 88 of 96



from current or proposed land use that may add pollutants 

to stormwater runoff; 

(2) current runoff pollution mitigation 

measures or plans and specifications for proposed runoff 

pollution mitigation measures, including necessary 

maintenance, with sufficient detail to support an 

engineering review; 

(3) current infiltrative methods or plans and 

specifications for infiltrative methods shall identify 

soil type and depth to the seasonal high water table 

providing: 

(a) a minimum of 2 feet from the bottom 

of any basin or swale to the seasonal high water table; 

or  

(b) maintenance of existing undisturbed 

vegetated surface as the bottom of the basin or swale 

and no standing water during high-water periods of the 

year from April 1 – September 30; and 

(4) site-specific analyses conducted by a 

qualified professional identifying the current or 

proposed runoff pollution mitigation measures. 

(B) A land use permit may only be issued upon a 

finding that the applicant’s runoff mitigation measures 

are sufficient as evidenced by:  

DRAFT

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 89 of 96



(1) review and certification of existing

runoff pollution mitigation measures by a qualified 

professional; or  

(2) design and installation of proposed runoff

pollution mitigation under the oversight of a qualified 

professional. 

(C) Runoff mitigation measures shall meet the

following criteria: 

(1) Treat the initial 0.25 inch of post-

development runoff for each storm event; 

(2) Provide a minimum of 12 hours of detention

for the post-development runoff in excess of pre-

development runoff volumes for the 1-year, 24-hour 

storm; 

(3) Maintain the post-development runoff peak

flow from the 10-year, 24-hour storm to less than 1.10 

times the pre-development runoff peak flow at all 

project discharge points; 

(4) Storm water conveyance and drainage

ditches shall be sized to pass the 10-year, 24-hour storm 

event. Control flows in conveyance channels so that 

transport of particles will not occur for the post-

development 10-year, 24-hour storm; and 

(5) In areas where wetlands are disturbed,

DRAFT

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 90 of 96



drainage must be designed to preserve the pre-

development function of the remaining wetlands.  

(D) Upon completion of the project, an as-built 

survey shall be submitted showing the location of all 

pertinent structures and features associated with the 

development. 

(E) A revised stormwater runoff analysis is 

required if future development could reasonably result 

in increased stormwater runoff. 

(F) Landowners are responsible for maintenance of 

approved runoff pollution mitigation measures specified 

in their land use permit under this chapter. 

Section 13. Adoption of Subsection. MSB 17.65.020(B) is 

hereby adopted as follows: 

(B) A variance from the water body setback 

requirement in MSB 17.55.020(A) may not be granted if 

the location of the proposed structure is: 

(1) closer than 45 feet from the ordinary 

high water mark of a water body.  

(2) in an area of known erosion hazard 

adjacent to a river, stream, or other flowing waters. 

Section 14. Amendment of Section. MSB 17.80.020 is hereby 

amended as follows: 

17.80.020 LEGAL NONCONFORMING STRUCTURES 

DRAFT

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 91 of 96



(A) The following structures qualify as legal 

nonconforming structures without an administrative 

determination, however, an administrative determination 

may be issued if requested by the property owner: 

(1) structures built lawfully and made 

nonconforming by adoption of subsequent ordinances; 

(a) all structures within 75 feet of a 

water body that were constructed prior to adoption of 

the setback requirement on July 3, 1973, and have not 

subsequently been enlarged or altered. 

(b) Non-habitable structures within 75 

feet of a water body that were constructed between 

September 16, 1988 and the effective date of this 

subparagraph.   

(2) structures built in violation of the 

ordinance existing at the time of construction, then 

made legal by adoption of subsequent ordinance, and 

later made nonconforming by adoption of subsequent 

ordinances; 

(a) habitable buildings and garages that 

were completed between July 3, 1973, and May 12, 1987, 

and have not subsequently been enlarged or altered, that 

are located between 45 and 75 feet from the ordinary 

high water mark of a water body. 

DRAFT

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 92 of 96



(3) permanent structures which were 

constructed lawfully after the date of adoption of the 

Acknowledgement of Existing Regulations, Chapter 17.01, 

but which were made unlawful after the date of start of 

construction due to adoption of subsequent regulations. 

(B) The following structures require an 

administrative determination in order to be granted 

legal nonconforming status; 

(1) structures granted a variance in 

accordance with Chapter 17.65; 

[(2) STRUCTURES BUILT IN VIOLATION OF 

SHORELINE SETBACK ORDINANCES EXISTING AT THE TIME OF 

CONSTRUCTION, AND SUBSEQUENTLY GRANTED AN EXEMPTION FROM 

SHORELINE SETBACKS IN ACCORDANCE WITH MSB 17.55.020(C);] 

(3) permanent structures built in violation of 

ordinances existing at the time of construction, and 

subsequently granted legal nonconforming status in 

accordance with MSB 17.80.070. 

Section 15. Amendment of Section. MSB 17.125.010 is hereby 

amended as follows: 

• “Cleared area” means an area where existing 

vegetative cover and surficial soil layers, including 

organic matter or duff, is removed or altered by ground-

disturbing activities. 

DRAFT

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 07/25/2025 93 of 96



• “Ground disturbing activity” means an activity

that includes the use of heavy equipment, such as a 

backhoe or bulldozer, that disturbs the soil layers, 

uproots woody vegetation, or alters preexisting land 

contours.  Examples of such activities include 

mechanized land clearing, grading, contouring, or 

placing of fill.  “Ground disturbing activity” does not 

include the cutting or removal of vegetation above the 

ground (i.e. use of hydro-axe, mowing, rotary cutting, 

and chain sawing) without disturbing the soil or root 

systems. 

• “Kennel, stable, and animal yards” means any

premises used for breeding, buying, selling, keeping, or 

boarding five or more dogs over the age of six months, 

whether for profit or not; any facility housing or 

holding more than three pigs, goats, or animals of 

similar size; and all facilities housing or holding 

large animals (e.g., horses, cattle, llamas).  

• “Lake” means a standing body of open water that

occurs in a natural depression fed by one or more streams 

from which a stream may flow, that occurs due to the 

widening or natural blockage or cutoff of a river or 

stream, or that occurs in an isolated natural depression 

that is not a part of a surface river or stream.  The 

DRAFT

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 7/10/2025 91 of 93



term also includes artificial waterbodies created by 

excavation, as well as artificial blocking or 

restriction of the flow of a river, stream, or tidal 

area (e.g. by a dam). 

• “Qualified professional” means a professional 

[HYDROLOGIST, GEOLOGIST, OR REGISTERED ENGINEER THAT HAS 

SPECIFIC EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE WITH GROUNDWATER 

HYDROLOGY] civil engineer or other professional 

registered with the State of Alaska under Alaska Statute 

08.48 qualified to practice the type of work required by 

this title. 

• “Riparian buffer” means native vegetation 

adjoining  a water body that helps to protect the water 

body from the impact of activities conducted on 

adjoining land. 

• “Runoff pollution mitigation measure” means any 

combination features designed and intended to treat and 

retain stormwater runoff associated with a development, 

such as bioswales, rain gardens, riparian buffers, or 

filter strips. 

• “Stormwater runoff” means any surface flow 

consisting entirely of water from precipitation 

including from the melting of ice and snow. Runoff occurs 

when the water volume or surface gradient overcome the 

DRAFT

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 7/10/2025 92 of 93



infiltrative capacity of the surface.  

• “Treat and retain” means to manage stormwater on

the parcel through any combination of detention, 

retention, infiltration, evapotranspiration, or other 

treatment methods to mitigate a discharge of stormwater 

runoff to a water body or adjoining parcel. 

Section 16. Effective date. This ordinance shall take effect 

upon adoption. 

ADOPTED by the Matanuska-Susitna Borough Assembly this - day 

of -, 2025. 

___________________________ 
EDNA DeVRIES, Borough Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________________ 
LONNIE R. McKECHNIE, CMC, Borough Clerk  

(SEAL) DRAFT

MSB Transportation Advisory Board Meeting Packet

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 7/10/2025 93 of 93


	Proposed Bogard_Seldon CAMP_Revised_01_30_2025.pdf
	1 Introduction
	1.1 Overview
	1.2 CAMP Goal and Strategies

	2 Corridor Background
	3 Corridor Access Management
	3.1 Methods
	3.2 Access Management Strategies

	4 Corridor Segments
	4.1 Introduction
	4.2 Segment A – E Bogard Road - S Glenn Highway to E Palmer Moose Drive
	4.2.1 Jurisdictional Ownership and Existing Right-of-way
	4.2.2 Existing Land Use and Future Development Opportunity
	4.2.3 Planned Improvement Projects
	4.2.4 Recommendations

	4.3 Segment B – E Bogard Road - E Palmer Moose Drive to N Trunk Road
	4.3.1 Jurisdictional Ownership Existing Right-of-way
	4.3.2 Existing Land Use and Future Development Opportunity
	4.3.3 Planned Improvement Projects
	4.3.4 Recommendations

	4.4 Segment C – E Bogard Road - N Trunk Road to E Bogard Road/E Seldon Road
	4.4.1 Jurisdictional Ownership Existing Right-of-way
	4.4.2 Existing Lane Use and Future Development Opportunity
	4.4.3 Planned Improvement Projects
	4.4.4 Recommendations

	4.5 Segment D – E Seldon Road – E Bogard Road-E Seldon Road Roundabout to Schrock Road
	4.5.1 Jurisdictional Ownership Existing Right-of-way
	4.5.2 Existing Land Use and Future Development Opportunity
	4.5.3 Planned Improvement Projects
	4.5.4 Recommendations

	4.6 Segment E – E Seldon Road – Schrock Road to N Lucille Street
	4.6.1 Jurisdictional Ownership Existing Right-of-way
	4.6.2 Existing Lane Use and Future Development Opportunity
	4.6.3 Planned Improvement Projects
	4.6.4 Recommendations

	4.7 Segment F – Seldon Road – N Lucille Street to N amar Road
	4.7.1 Jurisdictional Ownership Existing Right-of-way
	4.7.2 Existing Lane Use and Future Development Opportunity
	4.7.3 Planned Improvement Projects
	4.7.4 Recommendations


	5 Implementation
	5.1 Platting Actions
	5.2 Driveway Permits
	5.3 Other Recommendations

	6 Conclusion
	Appendix A. Typical Sections


	WBS Legislation.PDF
	ATTCH 3 - MSB 1702.PDF
	CHAPTER 17.02: MANDATORY LAND USE PERMIT
	17.02.010 INTENT AND APPLICABILITY.
	17.02.020 LAND USE PERMIT.
	17.02.030 PROCEDURE.
	17.02.040 ACTION ON APPLICATIONS.


	ATTCH 4 - MSB 1755.PDF
	CHAPTER 17.55: SETBACKS AND SCREENING EASEMENTS
	17.55.004 DEFINITIONS.
	17.55.005 GENERAL.
	17.55.010 SETBACKS.
	17.55.015 Shorelands; definition. [Repealed by Ord. 17-088(SUB), § 3, 2017]
	17.55.020 SETBACKS FOR SHORELANDS.
	17.55.040 VIOLATIONS, ENFORCEMENT, AND PENALTIES.


	ATTCH 5 - MSB 1765.PDF
	CHAPTER 17.65: VARIANCES
	17.65.010 INTENT.
	17.65.020 REQUIREMENTS FOR GRANTING A VARIANCE.
	17.65.030 CASES WHERE VARIANCE IS ILLEGAL.
	17.65.040 VARIANCE; CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL.
	17.65.050 INITIATION OF A VARIANCE REQUEST.
	17.65.070 PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION.
	17.65.080 RECORD OF VARIANCES.
	17.65.090 TERMINATION OF VARIANCES.
	17.65.100 APPEAL PROCEDURE.
	17.65.110 VIOLATIONS, ENFORCEMENT, AND PENALTIES.


	ATTCH 6 - MSB 1780.PDF
	CHAPTER 17.80: NONCONFORMING STRUCTURES
	17.80.010 INTENT.
	17.80.020 LEGAL NONCONFORMING STRUCTURES.
	17.80.030 FEES.
	17.80.040 WRITTEN DETERMINATION REQUIRED.
	17.80.050 NONCONFORMING LOTS OF RECORD.
	17.80.060 STANDARDS FOR NONCONFORMING STRUCTURES.
	17.80.070 APPLICATION FOR A DETERMINATION OF LEGAL NONCONFORMING STATUS.
	17.80.080 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE.
	17.80.090 RESTORATION OF DAMAGED PROPERTY.
	17.80.100 TERMINATION OF NONCONFORMITIES.
	17.80.110 VIOLATIONS AND ENFORCEMENT.


	ATTCH 7 - MSB 17125.PDF
	CHAPTER 17.125: DEFINITIONS
	17.125.005 GENERAL PROVISIONS.
	17.125.010 DEFINITIONS.






